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CORPORATE INFORMATION

Currently, the principal place of business of the Company
is located at Units 3709-10, 37th Floor, West Tower,
Shun Tak Centre, 168-200 Connaught Road Central,
Sheung Wan, Hong Kong.

During the year, the Group was involved in the following
principal activities:

o management of a holiday resort

o management of a theme park

. management of an amusement park

o provision of port facilities and ticketing services
o investment and property holding

The directors consider Zhu Kuan Company of the Zhuhai
SEZ, a state-owned enterprise in the People’s Republic
of China excluding Hong Kong and Macau (the “PRC"),
to be the Company’s ultimate holding company.

IMPACT OF A REVISED HONG KONG
STATEMENT OF STANDARD ACCOUNTING
PRACTICE

The Hong Kong Statement of Standard Accounting
Practice (“SSAP”) 12 (Revised) “Income taxes” is effective
for the first time for the current year’s financial
statements.
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IMPACT OF A REVISED HONG KONG
STATEMENT OF STANDARD ACCOUNTING
PRACTICE (Continued)

SSAP 12 prescribes the accounting for income taxes
payable or recoverable, arising from the taxable profit
or loss for the current period (current tax); and income
taxes payable or recoverable in future periods, principally
arising from taxable and deductible temporary differences
and the carryforward of unused tax losses (deferred tax).
The principal impact of this revised SSAP on the financial
statements is that deferred tax liabilities have been
recognised on the revaluation of the Group’s leasehold
land and buildings and the fair value adjustments arising
from the acquisition of a jointly-controlled entity. In
addition, the related note disclosures are now more
extensive than previously required. These disclosures are
presented in notes 10 and 32 to the financial statements
and include a reconciliation between the accounting
profit and the tax expense for the year.

Further details of these changes and the prior year
adjustments arising from them are included in the
accounting policy for deferred tax in note 3 and in note
32 to the financial statements.

REFTZEBEHERER 2R

(%)

ST EBERE125RTAR KN EER
T 28 M) = 5 48 T 22 A 2 FE A< 2RI U (Bl B
SR (RBHRE)  ARTEFARRBTK
AMRERERAZERPARBEER
MESEZ RKRENIAKEMEH GELT
MIB) 2 Gt RIBIE - WLIBERI G E
BEAHAPHERR T BEZERET
MBERABEREGAEBRZ L RET
REBHRAZEHNERBELEZ A FEERR
ERMR - M REBEME I RE
BBRETEHE - ZERBECHRYBR
RIEE10%32 - WBIEARFEE5HEN
MBI 2 $ik -

ZEEEPAMELZBEFEREZ
HIBFEBRENMBEHRERM E3E BELTH
HZ Gt BR R RE32 -

BN REAER2LT Zhu Kuan Development Company Limited m



Notes to Financial Statements

B 75 R 2R Bt 5

30 April 2004 —TEMFMOAB=+H

BASIS OF PRESENTATION AND SUMMARY OF
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Corporate update and basis of presentation

By an order of the High Court of Hong Kong (the “High
Court”) dated 14 August 2003, provisional liquidators
of Zhu Kuan Group Company Limited (“Zhu Kuan
Macau”) and Zhu Kuan (Hong Kong) Company Limited
(“Zhu Kuan (HK)") were appointed following the filing
of winding-up petitions (the “Zhu Kuan Winding-up
Petitions”) by one of their creditors. Zhu Kuan Macau
and Zhu Kuan (HK) together are the controlling
shareholders (the “Controlling Shareholders”) of the
Company, holding indirectly an aggregate equity interest
of approximately 71.7% in the Company, of which
approximately 42.2% is registered in the name of and
directly held by Pioneer Investment Ventures Limited
("PIV"), a wholly-owned subsidiary of Zhu Kuan Macau
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands.

By an order of the High Court and the Court of the
British Virgin Islands (the “BVI Court”), provisional
liquidators of PIV were appointed following the filing of
a voluntary winding-up petition (the “PIV Winding-up
Petition”) by the provisional liquidators of Zhu Kuan
Macau on behalf of Zhu Kuan Macau. The appointment
of provisional liquidators of Zhu Kuan Macau, Zhu Kuan
(HK) and PIV was for the purpose of safeguarding their
assets for the benefit of the creditors in general, pending
the High Court’s and the BVI Court’s decision as to
whether winding-up orders would be made against Zhu
Kuan Macau, Zhu Kuan (HK) and PIV.

Subsequent to the balance sheet date, a winding-up
order was granted by the Court of First Instance of the
Macau Special Administrative Region (the “Macau
Court”) against Zhu Kuan Macau (the “Macau Winding-
up Order”). A liquidator has been or will be appointed
by the Macau Court, who has taken over or will take
over the management of Zhu Kuan Macau.
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BASIS OF PRESENTATION AND SUMMARY OF
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Corporate update and basis of presentation
(Continued)

As at the date of approval of these financial statements,
the directors understand that (i) out of the 236 million
shares (representing approximately 29.5% equity interest
in the Company) beneficially held by Zhu Kuan (HK),
235.2 million shares have been pledged to Bank of China;
and (ii) the 337 million shares (the “PIV Charged Shares")
(representing approximately 42.2% equity interest in the
Company) attributable to PIV have been pledged to
Longway Services Group Limited (“Longway”), a wholly-
owned subsidiary of Zhuhai Jiuzhou Port Group
Corporation. Zhuhai Jiuzhou Port Group Corporation is
the joint venture partner of the Group’s jointly-controlled
entity, Zhuhai High-Speed Passenger Ferry Co., Ltd.
("Ferry Company”). Steps have been taken by Longway
to perfect its security conferred by the share charge by
a transfer of the PIV Charged Shares to Longway. The
provisional liquidators however consider that due to the
petitions, the transfer of PIV Charged Shares cannot be
effected. The dispute between Longway and the
provisional liquidators over the transfer of the PIV
Charged Shares has at the date of the financial
statements yet to be resolved. The directors consider
that any changes in the registered holders of the shares
currently held by the Controlling Shareholders may result
in a change in the composition of the board of directors
of the Company.

The above pledges were not used as security against
any of the Group’s borrowings. Furthermore, the Group
is not the subject of the Zhu Kuan Winding-up Petitions,
the PIV Winding-up Petition or the Macau Winding-up
Order (collectively the “Winding-up Petitions”).
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BASIS OF PRESENTATION AND SUMMARY OF
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Corporate update and basis of presentation
(Continued)

As at 30 April 2004 and up to the date of approval of
these financial statements, the Group has neither given
financial assistance (such as loans or guarantees) to Zhu
Kuan Macau, Zhu Kuan (HK), PIV or any of their
subsidiaries and associates, nor has the Group received
any financial assistance from Zhu Kuan Macau, Zhu Kuan
(HK), PIV or any of their subsidiaries and associates. The
major connected transactions made between (a) the
Group on the one part and (b) the group of companies
comprising Zhu Kuan Macau and Zhu Kuan (HK) and
their respective subsidiaries (other than the Group) on
the other part are certain lease arrangements under
which the Group is the lessee. The subject premises of
such lease arrangements are the Group’s office and staff
guarters in Hong Kong and certain of the facilities
(including villas, a health centre and recreational facilities)
of Zhuhai Holiday Resort Hotel Co., Ltd.. Further details
of such transactions are set out in note 40 to the financial
statements.

Further details concerning the above are also set out in
the Company’s various press announcements dated 18
August 2003, 3 September 2003, 9 September 2003
and 9 June 2004.

The financial statements of the Group have been
prepared on the assumption that the Group will continue
to operate as a going concern for the foreseeable future.
Save as disclosed above, the directors have no knowledge
as to the latest developments and are uncertain as to
the final outcome of the Winding-up Petitions.
Accordingly, they cannot give assurance that the future
business and financial operations of the Group will not
be significantly affected by the Winding-up Petitions.
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BASIS OF PRESENTATION AND SUMMARY OF
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Corporate update and basis of presentation
(Continued)

Should the Group be unable to continue as a going
concern as a result of the Winding-up Petitions and/or
any subsequent changes in the registered holders of the
pledged shares in the Company currently held by the
Controlling Shareholders, adjustments would have to be
made to restate the values of assets to their recoverable
amounts, to provide for any further liabilities which might
arise and to reclassify non-current assets and liabilities
as current assets and liabilities, respectively. The effects
of such adjustments have not been reflected in these
financial statements.

Basis of preparation

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Statements of Standard
Accounting Practice, accounting principles generally
accepted in Hong Kong and the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. They have been
prepared under the historical cost convention, except
for the periodic remeasurement of leasehold land and
buildings and short term investments, as further
explained in the respective accounting policies below.
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BASIS OF PRESENTATION AND SUMMARY OF
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the
financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries
for the year ended 30 April 2004. The results of the
subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the year are
consolidated from or to their effective dates of acquisition
or disposal, respectively. All significant intercompany
transactions and balances within the Group are
eliminated on consolidation.

Minority interests represent the interests of outside
shareholders in the results and net assets of the
Company’s subsidiaries.

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is a company whose financial and operating
policies the Company controls, directly or indirectly, so
as to obtain benefits from its activities.

The results of subsidiaries are included in the Company’s
profit and loss account to the extent of dividends received
and receivable. The Company’s interests in subsidiaries
are stated at cost less any impairment losses.

Joint venture companies

A joint venture company is a company set up by
contractual arrangement, whereby the Group and other
parties undertake an economic activity. The joint venture
company operates as a separate entity in which the
Group and the other parties have an interest.
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BASIS OF PRESENTATION AND SUMMARY OF
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Joint venture companies (Continued)

The joint venture agreement between the venturers
stipulates the capital contributions of the joint venture
parties, the duration of the joint venture and the basis
on which the assets are to be realised upon its
dissolution. The profits and losses from the joint venture
company’s operations and any distributions of surplus
assets are shared by the venturers, either in proportion
to their respective capital contributions, or in accordance
with the terms of the joint venture agreement.

A joint venture company is treated as:

(a) a subsidiary, if the Company has unilateral control,
directly or indirectly, over the joint venture
company;

(b) a jointly-controlled entity, if the Company does
not have unilateral control, but has joint control,
directly or indirectly, over the joint venture
company;

() an associate, if the Company does not have
unilateral or joint control, but holds, directly or
indirectly, generally not less than 20% of the joint
venture company'’s registered capital and is in a
position to exercise significant influence over the
joint venture company; or

(d) a long term investment, if the Company holds,
directly or indirectly, less than 20% of the joint
venture company’s registered capital and has
neither joint control of, nor is in a position to
exercise significant influence over, the joint
venture company.
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BASIS OF PRESENTATION AND SUMMARY OF
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Jointly-controlled entities

A jointly-controlled entity is a joint venture company
which is subject to joint control, resulting in none of the
participating parties having unilateral control over the
economic activity of the jointly-controlled entity.

The Group’s share of the post-acquisition results and
reserves of jointly-controlled entities is included in the
consolidated profit and loss account and consolidated
reserves, respectively. The Group’s interests in jointly-
controlled entities are stated in the consolidated balance
sheet at the Group's share of net assets under the equity
method of accounting less any impairment losses.
Goodwill arising from the acquisition of jointly-controlled
entities, which was not previously eliminated or
recognised in the consolidated reserves, is included as
part of the Group’s investments in jointly-controlled
entities.

Jointly-controlled operations

Joint venture arrangements which involve the use of
assets and other reserves of the Group and other parties,
without the establishment of a separate entity, are
referred to as jointly-controlled operations. Under these
arrangements, assets remain under the ownership and
control of each party. Revenue and expenses derived/
incurred in common are shared by the parties according
to the contractual arrangement.
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BASIS OF PRESENTATION AND SUMMARY OF
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Jointly-controlled operations (Continued)

Assets that the Group controls and liabilities that it incurs
in relation to jointly-controlled operations are recognised
in the Group’s consolidated balance sheet on an accrual
basis and are classified according to the nature of the
item. The Group’'s share of the income that it earns
from jointly-controlled operations, together with the
expenses that it incurs, is included in the Group’s
consolidated profit and loss account when it is probable
that the economic benefits associated with the
transactions will flow to/from the Group.

Associates

An associate is a company, not being a subsidiary or a
jointly-controlled entity, in which the Group has a long
term interest of generally not less than 20% of the equity
voting rights and over which it is in a position to exercise
significant influence.

The Group’s share of the post-acquisition results and
reserves of its associates is included in the consolidated
profit and loss account and consolidated reserves,
respectively. The Group’s interests in associates are stated
in the consolidated balance sheet at the Group’s share
of net assets under the equity method of accounting,
less any impairment losses.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on the acquisition of subsidiaries,
associates and jointly-controlled entities represents the
excess of the cost of the acquisition over the Group's
share of the fair values of the identifiable assets and
liabilities acquired as at the date of acquisition.
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BASIS OF PRESENTATION AND SUMMARY OF
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Goodwill (Continued)

Goodwill arising on acquisition is recognised in the
consolidated balance sheet as an asset and amortised
on the straight-line basis over its estimated useful life of
not exceeding 20 years. In the case of associates and
jointly-controlled entities, any unamortised goodwill is
included in the carrying amount thereof, rather than as
a separately identified asset on the consolidated balance
sheet.

Prior to the adoption SSAP 30 “Business combinations”
in 2001, goodwill arising on acquisitions was eliminated
against consolidated reserves in the year of acquisition.
On the adoption of SSAP 30, the Group applied the
transitional provision of the SSAP that permitted such
goodwill to remain eliminated against consolidated
reserves. Goodwill on acquisitions subsequent to the
adoption of the SSAP is treated according to the SSAP
30 goodwill accounting policy above.

On disposal of subsidiaries, associates or jointly-controlled
entities, the gain or loss on disposal is calculated by
reference to the net assets at the date of disposal,
including the attributable amount of goodwill which
remains unamortised and any relevant reserves, as
appropriate. Any attributable goodwill previously
eliminated against consolidated reserves at the time of
acquisition is written back and included in the calculation
of the gain or loss on disposal.
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BASIS OF PRESENTATION AND SUMMARY OF
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Goodwill (Continued)

The carrying amount of goodwill, including goodwill
remaining eliminated against consolidated reserves, is
reviewed annually and written down for impairment
when it is considered necessary. A previously recognised
impairment loss for goodwill is not reversed unless the
impairment loss was caused by a specific external event
of an exceptional nature that was not expected to recur,
and subsequent external events have occurred which
have reversed the effect of that event.

Related parties

Parties are considered to be related if one party has the
ability, directly or indirectly, to control the other party or
exercise significant influence over the other party in
making financial and operating decisions. Parties are also
considered to be related if they are subject to common
control or common significant influence. Related parties
may be individuals or corporate entities.

Impairment of assets

An assessment is made at each balance sheet date of
whether there is any indication of impairment of any
asset, or whether there is any indication that an
impairment loss previously recognised for an asset in
prior years may no longer exist or may have decreased.
If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable
amount is estimated. An asset’s recoverable amount is
calculated as the higher of the asset’s value in use or its
net selling price.

EREERITESHEERE @)

BE (B

BEZREE (BREGARETEREZ
BE) BFETER  IRNCERIRE
EATHOR > Z BT HER 2 BB R E R B A
TTHE  RFEZREBEABFTAIRS
WEMTIBHEE I EMFSIZ - BE
BBEEZINBEMHCEBFAAE M 2R

EpE -

BMEAL

M- EEERIEEEN ST X
RAE—TELMBREERRKITEE
T ARERREEAL - WHINR
FA—ZEHREATEZALTTRERE
BALT BAEBALARBEAXEERE

o

BEERME
REBESGEBSELFG  RETEM
BEACAEMARBETR  HBEFEM
BEMERZIBEERRES TEFER
BRDZHR o WA ERLRTR -
AlgbstAMEEC A ROERE - BE
ZAWEIHBHIEEE 2 AIEREER
HFEBE(UKSER/E)E -

BN REAER2LT Zhu Kuan Development Company Limited m



Notes to Financial Statements

B 75 R 2R Bt 5

30 April 2004 —TEMFMOAB=+H

BASIS OF PRESENTATION AND SUMMARY OF
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Impairment of assets (Continued)

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying
amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. An
impairment loss is charged to the profit and loss account
in the period in which it arises, unless the asset is carried
at a revalued amount, when the impairment loss is
accounted for in accordance with the relevant accounting
policy for that revalued asset.

A previously recognised impairment loss is reversed only
if there has been a change in the estimates used to
determine the recoverable amount of an asset, however
not to an amount higher than the carrying amount that
would have been determined (net of any depreciation/
amortisation), had no impairment loss been recognised
for the asset in prior years. A reversal of an impairment
loss is credited to the profit and loss account in the
period in which it arises, unless the asset is carried at a
revalued amount, when the reversal of the impairment
loss is accounted for in accordance with the relevant
accounting policy for that revalued asset.
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Notes to Financial Statements
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30 April 2004 —TEMFMOAB=+H

BASIS OF PRESENTATION AND SUMMARY OF
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Fixed assets and depreciation

Fixed assets, other than construction in progress, are
stated at cost or valuation less accumulated depreciation
and any impairment losses. The cost of an asset
comprises its purchase price and any directly attributable
costs of bringing the asset to its working condition and
location for its intended use. Expenditure incurred after
fixed assets have been put into operation, such as repairs
and maintenance, is normally charged to the profit and
loss account in the period in which it is incurred. In
situations where it can be clearly demonstrated that the
expenditure has resulted in an increase in the future
economic benefits expected to be obtained from the
use of the fixed asset, the expenditure is capitalised as
an additional cost of that asset.

Changes in the values of fixed assets are dealt with as
movements in the asset revaluation reserve. If the total
of this reserve is insufficient to cover a deficit, on an
individual asset basis, the excess of the deficit is charged
to the profit and loss account. Any subsequent
revaluation surplus is credited to the profit and loss
account to the extent of the deficit previously charged.
On disposal of a revalued asset, the relevant portion of
the asset revaluation reserve realised in respect of
previous valuations is transferred to retained profits as a
movement in reserves.
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BASIS OF PRESENTATION AND SUMMARY OF
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Fixed assets and depreciation (Continued)

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to
write off the cost or valuation of each asset, after taking
into account its residual value, over the following
estimated useful lives:
Medium term leasehold land Over the lease terms

outside Hong Kong
Buildings outside Hong Kong 20 years or over

the lease terms,

whichever is shorter
Furniture, fixtures, 5 to 10 years

equipment, motor vehicles,

plant and machinery,

and leasehold improvements

The gain or loss on disposal or retirement of fixed assets
recognised in the profit and loss account is the difference
between the net sales proceeds and the carrying amount
of the relevant asset.

Construction in progress represents the costs incurred in
connection with the construction of fixed assets, and is
stated at cost less any impairment losses, and is not
depreciated. Cost comprises the direct costs of
construction during the period of construction.
Construction in progress is reclassified to the appropriate
category of fixed assets when completed and ready for
use.
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BASIS OF PRESENTATION AND SUMMARY OF
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Rights to use port facilities

Rights to use port facilities are stated at cost less
accumulated amortisation and any impairment losses.
Amortisation is provided on the straight-line basis to
write off the cost of the rights over the contracted period
of 40 years.

The unamortised balance of the rights to use port
facilities is reviewed at the end of each year and is written
off to the extent that the unamortised balance is no
longer likely to be recovered.

Operating leases

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of
ownership of assets remain with the lessor are accounted
for as operating leases. Where the Group is the lessor,
assets leased by the Group under operating leases are
included in non-current assets and rentals receivable
under the operating leases are credited to the profit and
loss account on the straight-line basis over the lease
terms. Where the Group is the lessee, rentals payable
under the operating leases are charged to the profit and
loss account on the straight-line basis over the lease
terms.
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BASIS OF PRESENTATION AND SUMMARY OF
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Long term investments

Long term investments are non-trading investments in
unlisted equity securities intended to be held on a long
term basis. Unlisted equity securities are stated at cost
less any impairment losses that are considered by the
directors to be other than temporary, on an individual
investment basis.

The carrying amount of an individual investment is
reviewed at each balance sheet date to assess whether
its fair value has declined below the carrying amount.
When such impairment has occurred, the carrying
amount of the investment is reduced to its fair value
and the amounts of the impairment is charged to the
profit and loss account in the period in which it arose.
When the circumstances and events which led to the
impairment in value cease to exist and there is persuasive
evidence that the new circumstances and events will
persist for the foreseeable future, the amount of the
impairment previously charged is credited to the profit
and loss account to the extent of the amount previously
charged.

Golf club memberships

Golf club memberships, which are held on a long term
basis, are stated at cost less any impairment losses, on
an individual basis.
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BASIS OF PRESENTATION AND SUMMARY OF
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Short term investments

Short term investments are investments in equity
securities held for trading purposes and are stated at
their fair values on the basis of their quoted market
prices at the balance sheet date, on an individual
investment basis. The gains or losses arising from changes
in the fair value of short term investments are credited
or charged to the profit and loss account in the period
in which they arise.

Inventories

Inventories, which comprise mainly food, beverages and
souvenirs for resale purposes, are stated at the lower of
cost and net realisable value, after making due
allowances for obsolete or slow-moving items. Cost is
determined on the first-in, first-out basis. Net realisable
value is based on estimated selling prices less any
estimated costs to be incurred to completion and
disposal.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated cash flow statement,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and
demand deposits, and short term highly liquid
investments which are readily convertible into known
amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant
risk of changes in value, and have a short maturity of
generally within three months when acquired, less bank
overdrafts which are repayable on demand and form an
integral part of the Group’s cash management.
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BASIS OF PRESENTATION AND SUMMARY OF
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Cash and cash equivalents (Continued)

For the purpose of the balance sheet, cash and cash
equivalents comprise cash on hand and at banks,
including term deposits, which are not restricted as to
use.

Trade receivables

Trade receivables are recognised and carried at the
original invoiced amount. An estimate of doubtful debts
is made and deducted when collection of the full amount
is no longer considered probable. Bad debts are written
off as incurred.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income
tax is recognised in the profit and loss account or in
equity if it relates to items that are recognised in the
same or a different period directly in equity.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on
all temporary differences at the balance sheet date
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.
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BASIS OF PRESENTATION AND SUMMARY OF
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable
temporary differences:

o except where the deferred tax liability arises from
goodwill or the initial recognition of an asset or
liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction,
affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable
profit or loss; and

o in respect of taxable temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries,
associates and interests in joint ventures, except
where the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences can be controlled and it is probable
that the temporary differences will not reverse in
the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible
temporary differences, carryforward of unused tax assets
and unused tax losses, to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences, and the carryforward
of unused tax assets and unused tax losses can be
utilised:

o except where the deferred tax asset relating to
the deductible temporary differences arises from
negative goodwill or the initial recognition of an
asset or liability in a transaction that is not a
business combination and, at the time of the
transaction, affects neither the accounting profit
nor taxable profit or loss; and
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BASIS OF PRESENTATION AND SUMMARY OF
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Income tax (Continued)

. in respect of deductible temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries,
associates and interests in joint ventures, deferred
tax assets are only recognised to the extent that
it is probable that the temporary differences will
reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable
profit will be available against which the
temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at each balance sheet date and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit
will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax
asset to be utilised. Conversely, previously unrecognised
deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available
to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when
the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on
tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted at the balance sheet date.
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Notes to Financial Statements
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3. BASIS OF PRESENTATION AND SUMMARY OF
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the
economic benefits will flow to the Group and when the
revenue can be measured reliably, on the following bases:

(a)

(e)

service income, when the relevant services are
provided;

from the sale of tickets, when the tickets are
sold to the customers;

from the sale of food and beverages, when the
food and beverages are provided;

from the sale of goods, when the significant risks
and title of the goods have been transferred to
the customers, provided that the Group maintains
neither managerial involvement to the degree
usually associated with ownership, nor effective
control over the goods sold;

from the sale of short term listed equity
investments, on a trade date basis or at the date
on which the relevant sales contracts become or
are deemed unconditional, where appropriate;

interest income, on a time proportion basis taking
into account the principal outstanding and the
effective interest rate applicable;

rental income, on a time proportion basis over
the lease terms; and

dividend income, when the shareholders’ right to
receive payment has been established.
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BASIS OF PRESENTATION AND SUMMARY OF
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Employee benefits
Retirement benefits schemes

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefits scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”) under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance, for those employees who are eligible to
participate in the MPF Scheme. Contributions are made
based on a percentage of the employees’ basic salaries
or the maximum mandatory contributions as required by
the MPF Scheme and are charged to the profit and loss
account as they become payable in accordance with the
rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme
are held separately from those of the Group in an
independently administered fund. The Group’s employer
contributions vest fully with the employees when
contributed into the MPF Scheme except for the Group’s
employer voluntary contributions, which are refunded
to the Group when the employee leaves employment
prior to the contributions vesting fully, in accordance
with the rules of the MPF Scheme.

The subsidiaries, jointly-controlled entity and associates
established in the PRC are members of the state-managed
retirement benefits scheme operated by the PRC
government. The retirement benefits scheme
contributions, which are based on a certain percentage
of the salaries of the PRC employees, are charged to the
profit and loss account of the entities in the period to
which they relate and represent the amount of
contributions payable to the defined contribution
retirement benefits scheme.
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BASIS OF PRESENTATION AND SUMMARY OF
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Employee benefits (Continued)
Share option schemes

The Company operates share option schemes for the
purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible
participants who contribute to the success of the Group's
operations. The financial impact of share options granted
under the share option schemes is not recorded in the
Company's or the Group's balance sheet until such time
as the options are exercised, and no charge is recorded
in the profit and loss account or balance sheet for their
cost. Upon the exercise of share options, the resulting
shares issued are recorded by the Company as additional
share capital at the nominal value of the shares, and the
excess of the exercise price per share over the nominal
value of the shares is recorded by the Company in the
share premium account. Options which are cancelled
prior to their exercise date, or which lapse, are deleted
from the register of outstanding options.

Dividends

Final dividends proposed by the directors are classified
as a separate allocation of retained profits within the
capital and reserves section of the balance sheet, until
they have been approved by the shareholders in a general
meeting. When these dividends have been approved by
the shareholders and declared, they are recognised as a
liability.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and
declared, because the Company’s memorandum and bye-
laws grant the directors the authority to declare interim
dividends. Consequently, interim dividends are recognised
immediately as a liability when they are proposed and
declared.
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BASIS OF PRESENTATION AND SUMMARY OF
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions are recorded at the
applicable exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies at the balance sheet date are translated at
the applicable exchange rates ruling at that date.
Exchange differences are dealt with in the profit and
loss account.

On consolidation, the financial statements of overseas
subsidiaries, jointly-controlled entities and associates are
translated into Hong Kong dollars using the net
investment method. The profit and loss accounts of
overseas subsidiaries, jointly-controlled entities and
associates are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the
weighted average exchange rates for the year, and their
balance sheets are translated into Hong Kong dollars at
the exchange rates ruling at the balance sheet date. The
resulting translation differences are included in the
exchange fluctuation reserve.

For the purpose of the consolidated cash flow statement,
the cash flows of overseas subsidiaries are translated
into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rates ruling at
the dates of the cash flows. Frequently recurring cash
flows of overseas subsidiaries which arise throughout
the year are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the
weighted average exchange rates for the year.
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4. SEGMENT INFORMATION 4. DEER
Segment information is presented by way of the Group'’s PHERTDIUAEEFEZESDBEHRE
primary segment reporting basis, by business segment. £ BIREBE D  c REEASE 2
In determining the Group’s geographical segments, @58 - WATIREP MG A D
revenues are attributed to the segments based on the e mMEERREEMEMGTADE -
location of the customers, and assets are attributed to AREEBBIO%ZWATIREFRHE
the segments based on the location of the assets. No P MAEEHBBRIO%LEEMRE
further geographical segment information is presented B MW EBIINZRIE D FER -

as over 90% of the Group’s revenue is derived from
customers based in the PRC, and over 90% of the
Group's assets are located in the PRC.

The Group’s operating businesses are structured and 2§’$Z%§§¥f&ﬂ$ﬁﬁﬁ¥ﬂw&ﬁﬁ%f
managed separately, according to the nature of their EmkRBzHEE KRB IREERD
operations and the products and services they provide. AEEAR - AEES—EBKHEHE
Each of the Group’s business segments represents a BYRBERSE T SEREZEDR
strategic business unit that offers products and services R 75 TR A HE B B At 2 75 5 BB AR 2 B B
which are subject to risks and returns that are different REWR - EBHEFBHMAT

from those of the other business segments. Summary
details of the business segments are as follows:

(a) the hotel segment consists of the management (a) BIEXEIMN  aEEBP LK
of a holiday resort hotel in Zhuhai, the PRC; B—EERMNBEE

(b)  the tourist attraction segment consists of the (b) IRESHEBHLM  BEERES
management of a theme park and an amusement BHRE—BEEENE & — R s
park in Zhuhai, the PRC; %

() the provision of port facilities and ticketing (0 REBOZEERMEHERSE
services segment provides port facilities and EBFT - R .I%/ikf\/ﬁﬂ il
ticketing services in Zhuhai, the PRC; and MeRMEEERT &

(d)  the corporate and other segment comprises the (d) 2REREEEMILFIRELREER
Group’s investment holding and trading of ZIEEREBHFEBEEBNMA
securities, together with corporate expense items. AIZMIERE °

Intersegment sales and transfers are transacted with HFcRAEEREBEL2BEETE=H

reference to the selling prices used for sales made to ZEHEBWRIZERMERETT °

third parties at the then prevailing market prices.
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4. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 4. SEE® @)
The following tables present revenue, profit/(loss) and TRITAEBESXZBIBEZRA - &
certain asset, liability and expenditure information for AMAGBB)RETEE  BERIES
the Group’s business segments. B K} o
Provision of
port facilities
and ticketing
Tourist services Corporate
Hotel attraction RUEORE and other Eliminations Consolidated
BE gt RHEHERE  QAREREM it ke
2004 2003 2004 2003 2004 2003 2004 2003 2004 2003 2004 2003
CEEME R ECREME SRR REME TR ECREME RS -EEEME-TT-ESEME-TECE
HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS000  HKS'000  HKS$'000  HKS000
BETL BT BETR AR AETn BT BRTn AT AETn A¥Tn BETn AR
Seqment revenue: ABHA
Sales 1o external customers BRNEFHER 10875 1687 WM 919 RSB N6 - = - — 193610 208637
Intersegment sales IFRHER - - - 10 - - - - - (10 - -
Total &3 0875 16877 /A2 50132 3253 3263 - - - (1,003) 193,610 208,637
Segment reuls D (4847 (8135 (13916 (5464 12510 10192 (6388) (10152 - —(164)  (13559)
Inteest income HERA 650 655
Loss from operating actites it 3 A (11,991 (12,904
Finence coss HBER 319 (1,121)
Share o profits and loses of ElGRH RER -
Joint-controle entiy ARAEHER - - - — 0260 14283 - = - — 020 1483
Associates N - - - - - - (e Wy - - (%) @)
Proftloss) bfore fax RREH/ (58) s ()
Tat e (5766)  (5389)
Proft(oss) before minority RoahRES
interests HERH/ (EE) 1986 (5,560)
Minoriy interess hEhRER (1086)  (89)
et proftloss)from ordinary REEkAR
actiiie attibutable to £547/
shareholders (BREE) 0w (640

m Zhu Kuan Development Company Limited kA% R HR A A
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4. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 4, DHEER (&)

Provision of

port facilities

and ticketing

Tourist services Corporate
Hotel attraction BEtAORE and other Consolidated
BE HESH REEHERE ARRBRE M &%

2004 2003 2004 2003 2004 2003 2004 2003 2004 2003
ZEEME “E3F CZEME C5%-F CREME CIT-F CREME C3%-F “BIME CTEcE
HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS$'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000
ERTr EETn ERTn AETn ERFn BETn ERFn BEFn ERFR EETn

(Restated) (Restated) (Restated) (Restated)

(& =5)) (& =5) (&=7) (@ E5)

Segment assets HEEE 309,405 300,138 475,686 483,756 94,188 82,674 44,349 5,705 923,628 923273
Interest in a jointly-controlled 5\ AR

entity EEER - = - — 113392 %6615 - - M33%2 9615

Interests in associates REERE ER - = - = - N KL IR LY, 1959 2157

Total assets AELHE 1,038,979 1,022,045

Total liabilities BE8E 45,023 40,560 25,202 25,635 15,114 13,989 3,944 4968 89,283 85,152

Other segment information: ~~ Zf LR

Depreciation and fEREH

amortisation 17,405 17,793 26,831 21,076 1,451 1,228 376 254 46,063 46,351
Capital expenditure AR 5,892 6,567 1,209 2,158 2,700 2273 260 - 10,061 10,998
Provision for impairment SRxRe

of golf club memberships SENERE 1720 2580 - = - = - - N0 2580
Provision for doubtful AR

debts 2,398 828 - — - — - - 2,398 828
Net unrealsed holding RERHLTR

(gains)osses on ZREIAED

short term lsted (%) /B

equity investments it - - - - - — (881 34 (a8 340
Non-compliance fine ERER - - - = -3 - = -39

KK RAER AT Zhu Kuan Development Company Limited {3
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5. TURNOVER AND REVENUE

The Group’s turnover represents proceeds from the
provision of services, sale of goods, tickets, food and
beverages, and the provision of port facilities and
ticketing services, less sales tax and after trade discounts
and returns, during the year.

An analysis of the Group’s turnover and other revenue is

—ETNFEENA=+H

5. EXERWA

AEERFRZEFBIIERB RER
%oHEEmR IR RYURKBEE
R O kM RIHE RS - EMERH
EVRBEBREFIREERZAERK
I8 o

BREAKBEXBREMBBAZ M

as follows: T
2004 2003
—EEZMF —EE=F
HK$'000 "HK$000
E¥F T BT T
Turnover =
Sale of goods and HEEmRRMERS
provision of services 193,610 208,637
Other revenue Hh g A R W
Interest income A B WA 650 655
Dividend income from HHEMREREZ
short term listed & Bl A
equity investments 12 13
Gross and net rental income A& U A & %58 & F 58 5,881 5,982
Sundry income LS BN N 210 1,079
6,753 7,729
200,363 216,366

m Zhu Kuan Development Company Limited kA% R HR A A
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6. LOSS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 6. REXBEE
The Group’s loss from operating activities is arrived AEERKELBHEBECHER (GTA) T
at after charging/(crediting): 5 & 18 :
2004 2003
—EENF —ZEE=
Notes HK$’000 HK$°000
M &t BEFT B F T
Cost of inventories sold EEFEKA 17,873 17,893
Cost of services provided * Fi 42 4 Al 75 B A * 146,612 159,118
Depreciation e 13 45,520 45,808
Amortisation of rights to B O R 2 fF A
use port facilities 14 543 543
Provision for impairment of SRR EeHE
golf club memberships ** LB B > 1,720 2,580
Provision for doubtful debts AR 2,398 828
Minimum lease payments T REBF KL
under operating leases M &K & KB
in respect of land and buildings 12,109 10,905
Auditors’ remuneration Z 2R B & 860 860
Staff costs (including BEXA(BRIEES
directors’ remuneration Bl & — i 3£ 8)
— note 8):
Wages and salaries TR E e 52,075 54,283
Pension scheme contributions RNEFH 85K 1,564 1,670
53,639 55,953
Loss on disposal of fixed assets HEEEEERE 174 1,836
Net unrealised holding (gains)/ BEEESH FmRE
losses on short term B2 REH
listed equity investments (M) /E18)3 8 (1,487) 3,442
Net realised (gains)/losses on EEEHLEMRERE
trading of short term ZAREHE (W),
listed equity investments EEFE (434) 9
Exchange gain, net b 5, Iy 25 0% 2R (258) (16)
Non-compliance fine # E RS K # — 3,290

* Cost of services provided includes HK$87,495,000 *
(2003: HK$91,377,000) in respect of staff costs,
depreciation of fixed assets, amortisation of rights to
use port facilities and operating lease rentals for land
and buildings, which are also included in the respective
total amounts disclosed separately above for these types
of expenses.

*x The provision for impairment of golf club memberships St
is included in “Other operating expenses, net” on the
face of the consolidated profit and loss account.

Friet RIS AN E R 2155 BB 8 K
A BEEBEENE  BESOXEZ
FERAERTHEEFZCEHNES
HB#87,495,0007C (BT =4F : /&
#91,377,0007T) - e BIEH A Ll
BEERAT ZBHA -

BERREEEUERBEIARA
BERZEMEEMFEIA -

BN REAER2LT Zhu Kuan Development Company Limited m
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6.

7.

70

LOSS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES (Continued)

#

The amount for the year ended 30 April 2003
represented the payment of a non-compliance fine
imposed on Zhuhai Jiuzhou Port Passenger Traffic Service
Co., Ltd. (“Jiuzhou Port Company”), a subsidiary of the
Company, due to its failure to comply with the
regulations of the State Administration for Foreign
Exchange of the PRC. Pursuant to the regulations, the
non-compliance was subject to a fine of approximately
HK$3,290,000 which was included in “Other operating
expenses, net” on the face of the consolidated profit
and loss account. In addition to the above, Ferry
Company, a jointly-controlled entity of the Group, was
also subject to a non-compliance fine amounting to
HK$3,748,000 for the year ended 30 April 2003. The
Group's share of the fine imposed on Ferry Company,
of approximately HK$ 1,836,000, was reflected in “Share
of profit of a jointly-controlled entity” on the face of
the consolidated profit and loss account.

FINANCE COSTS

—EZNFEWNA=1+H

6. REXBER @

# ZEBEE_TT-_FNA=THILLFE
ZHEBEARNAMBRARKENLNE
BEREERAR (TWNEREAR])
AAXEEBTHFEAREMBE ([FHEHA])
BEXRNEEERB ARG MES 2 ER
Sk o IREBEEEBIE  BERFEERD
753,290,000t Rz LA AIFI ALR
ARG RZEMEERIFREIA -
AN AEBZ ERZEFEERHA
ATREE —_TET=FNA=+HI1t
FE A ENE AR S KB ¥ 3,748,0007T °
AEESEREB AR Ll SR B
1,836,0007C * ERMPGAEEBRERA
ZIoEEREHEEREA]A -

7. HMBER

Group

rEH
2004 2003
—EENE —EE=F
HKS000 HK$000
EBEFT B F T

Interest on bank loans ARAFANBHEEZ
wholly repayable RITE FHFE

within five years 319 1,121

Zhu Kuan Development Company Limited kA% R HR A A
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DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

Directors’ remuneration for the year, disclosed pursuant
to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing
Rules”) and Section 161 of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, is as follows:

EEHS
REEEHARDHARATNES LD
REI(TEMRR) RES R A EHE
161G R EENERAATEE M
HEWT

Group
rEEH
2004 2003
—EENE T =4F
HK$'000 "HK$000
E¥F T BT T
Executive directors: WITESE -
Fees e — =
Basic salaries EX%E 555 484
Pension scheme BRIRETEI R
contributions 17 17
572 501
Non-executive directors: FRITES :
Fees e 600 600
1,172 1,101

Fees for the non-executive directors disclosed above
include HK$400,000 (2003: HK$400,000) payable to the
independent non-executive directors. There were no
other emoluments payable to the independent non-
executive directors during the year.

No emoluments were paid by the Group to the directors
as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group, or
as compensation for loss of office. There was no
arrangement under which a director waived or agreed
to waive any remuneration during the year.

During the year ended 30 April 2003, 31,120,000 share
options were granted to the directors in respect of their
services to the Group. No value in respect of these share
options has been charged to the profit and loss account,
or was otherwise included in the above directors’
remuneration disclosures.

EXBEZIQTEZRSBESE
400,0007T (ZZEZF =4 : &% 400,000
TO) BN TR IERITESE 2 HE - FR
WHEREMN FBIYIERNITE S 2 H B
%o

AEBEVERNE=ENEAME R
BEREMAREE 2RB - HERK
EZBEBHEE -FA EEME2EAT
Mz MEIXRABREEAHE -

RBE_TE=FOA=THLFE -
131,120,000 BB #E T AR & E ik
BZES REARE 2 IBRECEMR
EEHBmAME - HETA EX 2 E =M

EWEAR -

BN REAER2LT Zhu Kuan Development Company Limited
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72

FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES

The five highest paid employees during the year included
four (2003: four) directors, details of whose remuneration
are set out in note 8 above. Details of the remuneration
of the remaining non-director, highest paid employee
for the year are as follows:

—FTNFMA=A

IEBE%HES

FREEBESHFEERENE (ZT2=
FEUBEF MEeFBERNLXWE
8- AEEHB AR mHFEFTREEL
MEFBEET

Group
REEH
2004 2003
—EENME —EFE=F
HK$"000 HKS'000
BT T BT T
Basic salaries HEA#H 1,008 1,008
Pension scheme contributions iR K&+ 2 % 12 12
1,020 1,020

No emoluments were paid by the Group to the non-
director, highest paid employee as an inducement to
join or upon joining the Group, or as compensation for
loss of office.

During the year ended 30 April 2003, 2,160,000 share
options were granted to the non-director, highest paid
employee in respect of his services to the Group. No
value in respect of these share options has been charged
to the profit and loss account, or was otherwise included
in the above non-director, highest paid employees’
disclosures.

Zhu Kuan Development Company Limited kA% R HR A A

AEBYEAZERSHIFERREEX
MM (FRBFEREMAREE 2R
B - SERBEREE -

REBEE_ZTZE=FTNA=1tHLFE
N ERERSHIEFREHAEEZ
PR 75 1| HL#% 1 2,160,00017 BB A #E - 3F &
BRaXMBZEZSHEREZEE -
NEE LIS HIFESREERNIELR

Eg o



Notes to Financial Statements

B 75 R 2R Bt 5

30 April 2004 —ETNFNA=TA
10. TAX 10. BiIE
Group
A EE
2004 2003
—EENF —ET=F
HK$°000 HK$'000

B FT BT T

Group: REE :
PRC F 2,050 2,244

Share of tax attributable to JE i 2 [ 2 )

a jointly-controlled entity: ERNIE

PRC ey 3,716 3,145
Total tax charge for the year ~AN4FEF A X H 5,766 5,389
Hong Kong profits tax has not been provided because HRFARNEBEBECMAREEREEZE
the Group did not generate any assessable profits arising AR A A EE B NG LD B
in Hong Kong during the year (2003: Nil). The Group’s H(ZEZT=F : &) - KEERFEIK
subsidiaries established in the PRC are subject to a PRC M2 MBARERPBIMERE15% (=
income tax rate of 15% (2003: 15%). TE=4F : 15%) BT -

BN REAER2LT Zhu Kuan Development Company Limited
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—EZNFEWNA=1+H

10. TAX (Continued) 10. BB (&)
A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit/ BEARRIRENRBAR - XEESE
(loss) before tax using the statutory rates for the countries BENBEANRMEBRR 2 EEHRETE
in which the Company and its subsidiaries, jointly- BREAIATR (BB 2HERY #2F
controlled entity and associates are domiciled to the tax BREFE2BIERASXHERNAT
expense at the effective tax rates are as follows:
Group
rEE
2004 2003
—EENF —EE=F
HK$°000 H/S$'000
BEFT BT T
Profit/(loss) before tax BREATER S (E8) 7,752 (171)
Tax at the statutory tax rates I&ZEER KT E 2 18 4,793 2,697
Lower tax rate for HEA MM
specific provinces R SR A X
or local authority (3,949) (2,880)
Expenses not deductible I3
for tax 2,626 3,000
Tax losses not recognised RERZTIBEE 1,770 2,059
Others H 526 513
Tax charge at the Group’s BRAEEERNEFTE
effective rate ZBIE X 5,766 5,389
11. NET PROFIT/(LOSS) FROM ORDINARY 1. RREGBEEBARN (BB F

ACTIVITIES ATTRIBUTABLE TO SHAREHOLDERS

The net loss from ordinary activities attributable to
shareholders dealt with in the financial statements of
the Company for the year ended 30 April 2004 is
HK$7,009,000 (2003: HK$9,590,000) (note 35(b)).

Zhu Kuan Development Company Limited kA% R HR A A

)

HE-_ZTNENA=Z+THILFEHEA
ARRPBRREBZBRREHATEE
R 18358 A8 7,009,000 (2 F
=4F : B19,590,0007T) (K17£35(b)) °
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12.

EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE

The calculation of basic earnings/(loss) per share is based
on the Group’'s net profit from ordinary activities
attributable to shareholders for the year of HK$920,000
(2003: net loss of HK$6,405,000) and the weighted
average of 799,000,000 (2003: 799,000,000) ordinary
shares in issue during the year.

The calculation of diluted earnings per share is based on
the net profit attributable to shareholders for the year
of HK$920,000. The weighted average number of
ordinary shares used in the calculation is the 799,000,000
ordinary shares in issue during the year, as used in the
basic earnings per share calculation, and the weighted
average of 25,472,000 ordinary shares assumed to have
been issued at no consideration on the deemed exercise
of all share options during the year.

A diluted loss per share amount for the year ended 30
April 2003 has not been disclosed, as the share options
outstanding during that year had an anti-dilutive effect
on the basic loss per share for that year.

—FTNFMA=A

12.

BRER(BE)

BREANER,(BEE) DEAEEZA
FERREN B BB 4EF#%%920,000
T(ZEZE=F : BREFEBEE
6,405,0007T) & F A B 317 I 8 A% N4
- 5 £2799,000,000/% (—Z T ZT = &F :
799,000,0000%) 5+ & -

EREERFNDEAEFERRELB T
E B AE920,000TETE - AR
B L @ABRMETESETRETESR
EXRBAcFABETZTRABRMETH
£(799,000,0000% * WRRFANITENE
RITEIBRRE M B EE TS BARM
e S 5 87 25,472,0000% ©

HREBE_TT=_FHA=THLFE
ARTEBBRES LA FEBRERER
ERBERE HMYEBERBEZFEZLSE
BEEEIRSHE -
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13. FIXED ASSETS 13. BEEEE
Group rE
Furniture,
fixtures,
equipment,
motor
Medium term vehicles,
leasehold plant and
land and machinery,
buildings and leasehold
outside improvements
HongKong &E - £8 -
Construction  FEMUNHz HE> "AE
in progress THEE BERMHER Total
REIR tHREF HEWEEE Chil
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BEFT BETT BETT EEFT
Cost or valuation: P AE A :
At beginning of year E1 581 635,980 138,708 775,269
Additions NE 5,238 — 4,823 10,061
Disposals HE (389) — (6,129) (6,518)
Transfer from construction BERIRE
in progress B (3,830) — 3,830 —
Revaluation Bt — (13,360) — (13,360)
At 30 April 2004 RZZEZNENA=1H 1,600 622,620 141,232 765,452
Accumulated depreciation: 2EHE -
At beginning of year ) — — 74,247 74,247
Provided during the year KEERE = 25,812 19,708 45,520
Disposals & — - (5,127) (5,127)
Written back on revaluation BHEE — (25,812) — (25,812)
At 30 April 2004 RZZETNEMA=1A — — 88,828 88,828
Net book value: IREFE
At 30 April 2004 RZZEZNENA=1H 1,600 622,620 52,404 676,624
At 30 April 2003 R-_EE=FMA=1H 581 635,980 64,461 701,022
Analysis of cost or valuation: MABLEES I :
At cost KARE 1,600 — 141,232 142,832
At 30 April 2004 valuation RZEZENENA=THMAEE - 622,620 — 622,620
1,600 622,620 141,232 765,452

76
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13.

FIXED ASSETS (Continued)

—EENFEWNA=1+H

13. BIEEE &)

Company AT
Motor
vehicles
and
leasehold
improvements
RER
HEWMEEE
HK$'000
B F T
Cost: B ANME
At beginning of year F 1] 1,270
Additions NE 94
Disposals & (877)
At 30 April 2004 RZZEZWMEFWMA=+H 487
Accumulated depreciation: ZEHE
At beginning of year F 1) 771
Provided during the year NEE R 375
Disposals A= (877)
At 30 April 2004 R-ZZEZWMFEMNA=+H 269
Net book value: REDFE -
At 30 April 2004 RZZEZWMFEMA=+H 218
At 30 April 2003 RZZEE=FWMA=+H 499

Certain leasehold land and buildings of the Group are
pledged to secure banking facilities granted to the Group
as detailed in note 31 to the financial statements.

MBS RRM T - AREZET
HMELwREFOHEER  FRAKHE
BRETRITBEZER -

BRXBEAEMR AT Zhu Kuan Development Company Limited
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13.

78

FIXED ASSETS (Continued)

On 30 April 2004, the medium term leasehold land and
buildings outside Hong Kong were revalued by Castores
Magi (Hong Kong) Limited, an independent firm of
professionally qualified valuers. Depending on the nature
of the properties, various leasehold land and buildings
of the Group were revalued at approximately
HK$601,700,000 (2003: HK$614,500,000),
HK$17,900,000 (2003: HK$18,300,000) and
HK$3,020,000 (2003: HK$3,180,000) on the depreciated
replacement cost basis, the income capitalisation basis
and the open market basis, respectively. A net surplus
of HK$12,452,000 (2003: HK$7,838,000) resulting from
the above revaluations was recognised and credited to
asset revaluation reserve.

Had the Group’s medium term leasehold land and
buildings outside Hong Kong been carried at cost less
accumulated depreciation, they would have been
included in the financial statements at a net book value
of approximately HK$516,630,000 (2003:

HK$538,485,000).

Save as disclosed above, all other fixed assets were
carried at cost less accumulated depreciation as at 30
April 2004.

Zhu Kuan Development Company Limited kA% R HR A A

—FTNFMA=A

13.

BEEE &)

R-ZZBEZNEFEMB=+H FBBEUIIZ
FHESELHMEIEFERBYUEXLRE
BEEMZE (B8 AR ARIETE
HoBENEEELHFIATEETERK
Nk - WEmEAREERARMS BE
£ AREFBEHEL M EET 2B HE
#4576 601,700,000 (Z 2T =4 ¢
75 614,500,0007T) ~ % 17,900,000
T (ZEZ =4 : #%18,300,0007T) &
& #3,020,000c (Z 22 =F : %
3,180,0007T) ° JR B Ll Bl 2 F A%
BE112,452,000 (ZEE=F : B
7,838,0007T) B & R 51 5O & B B
HHEA o

EAEBEZEEUIIFRABE i R 1E
FREABERIFTITETR - AIFEER
FHERERPZIRMFERNASBE
516,630,000 (Z B E =F : B &
538,485,0007T) °

R EXFAREEI  AERMEEEE
AR -_ZENFOA=1THZKAE
BRI EIR o
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14. RIGHTS TO USE PORT FACILITIES FEREBORKZER
Group
rEHE
HK$°000
B F T
Cost: KA :
At beginning of year FOERR-_ZETME
and at 30 April 2004 MA=+H 21,577
Accumulated amortisation: RETHEEH
At beginning of year F 1] 1,592
Provided during the year NEFEME 543
At 30 April 2004 R-ZZEZWMFEMNA=+H 2,135
Net book value; R T F (A
30 April 2004 RZZEZWMFEMA=+H 19,442
30 April 2003 R-ZEE=FWMNA=+H 19,985

15.

The balance represents the Group’s rights to use certain

buildings and structures erected on Jiuzhou Port in
Zhuhai, the PRC, for a term up to 27 March 2040.

RRBEEASBEBRE_TNTF=A
—tEHEERETRBKEME MR
BZETEBTREBZER -

GOLF CLUB MEMBERSHIPS EHEXREEE
Group
AEE
2004 2003
—2ENE  -TT=F
HK$°000 HK$000
BETFT BT T
At cost KA {E 21,500 21,500
Provision for impairment B R (7.740) (6,020)
13,760 15,480

The balance represents memberships of a golf club in
Zhuhai, the PRC, held by the Group. The memberships
are perpetual and are freely transferrable. The

memberships were acquired by the Group to provide

golf club facilities for the Group’s customers.

HEBRDEASERFEKEREZS
MAkegeR® SRBXAHATAH
BE - AKEBASEZENEREE
FRHE#ESBRREMRNE -
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16. GOODWILL

The amount of goodwill arising from acquisitions prior
to the Group’s accounting period beginning 1 May 2001
which remains eliminated against consolidated reserves
as at 30 April 2004 was HK$200,573,000 (2003:
HK$200,573,000 as restated).

As detailed in note 3 to the financial statements, on
adoption of SSAP 30 in 2001, the Group applied the
transitional provision of SSAP 30 that permitted goodwill
in respect of acquisitions which occurred prior to the
adoption of the SSAP, to remain eliminated against
consolidated reserves.

17. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

—ETNFEENA=+H

16.

17.

L

AREBR-_ZTT—FHA—B#stze
SRR AN B AR MEETER =
TERFEM A=+ H 258 RBEREH
2 REE S5 A 200,573,000T (==
T =4 : B ¥ 200,573,0007T ' K&
) o

WK I - ERA ST ER
ERFI0RR - AREERSHEHKE
AIZE305% 2 BIRIR - BRItk - AEHEA
BREFMETERERFRE 2 mER
RERmEBAERE -

REE AR 2ERE
Company
AR
2004 2003
—EENF —TT=F
HK$’'000 HK$°000

EETFIT EBETT

Unlisted shares, at cost I Em %D (R AN E) 892,808 892,808
Due from subsidiaries = NGIE ] 131,343 136,280
1,024,151 1,029,088

The amounts due from subsidiaries are unsecured,
interest-free and have no fixed terms of repayment.

m Zhu Kuan Development Company Limited kA% R HR A A
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17. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 17. RHEBRARZER (&)

AABETEMBRRZHBAOT :

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries of the Company

are as follows:

Nominal value
of issued and
paid-up share/

Place of
incorporation/

Percentage
of equity

registration registered attributable
and operations capital to the Company
M, ERTRERE ARF] Principal
Name = it & BHOZEEE ELRAELR  activities
= REmE AfER BatE TEXH
Direct Indirect
B =
Zhu Kuan Tourist British Virgin US$15,600 100 — Investment
Development Company Islands/ and property
Limited Hong Kong holding
KRRBEERAER QA REBRLES/ 15,6003 7T 100 — REZBRR
BB MEFHEF
Zhuhai Holiday Resort PRC HK$184,880,000 — 100  Management of
Hotel Co., Ltd. a holiday resort
KEERNBEERAR & & % 184,880,0007T — 100 EE-ERH
The New Yuanming PRC RMB60,000,000 = 100  Management of
Palace Tourist Co., Ltd. a theme park
of Zhuhai S.E.Z.
IRIB A N I (B BR 3 B A KR #60,000,0007T — 100 EE-—TITERE

Ik E R AR

BN REAER2LT Zhu Kuan Development Company Limited m
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17. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 17. RBELR 2ERE (8)
Nominal value
Place of of issued and Percentage
incorporation/ paid-up share/ of equity
registration registered attributable
and operations capital to the Company
M, ERITRER b NN Principal
Name =& Bz E@E" BEERAEZ  activities
TR R B & it & A< Aol FEXK
Direct Indirect
HiE 4
RBKEREFRA A PRC RMB22,500,000 — 100  Management of
an amusement
park
gk FREFR A A a2 AR #22,500,00070 — 100 BB LS
Jiuzhou Port Company PRC RMB42,330,000 — 90 Provision of
port facilities
and ticketing
services
AMEBFER A H AR #42,330,0007T = 90 RBEBOXIER
MR E RS

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company as
at 30 April 2004 which, in the opinion of the directors,
principally affected the results for the year or formed a
substantial portion of the net assets of the Group. To
give details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion
of the directors, result in particulars of excessive length.

m Zhu Kuan Development Company Limited kA% R HR A A
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18.

INTEREST IN A JOINTLY-CONTROLLED ENTITY

—EENFEWNA=1+H

18. MHAFEZEFER Z2ER

Group

rEH
2004 2003
—EENF —ET=F
HK$°000 HK$'000
BT T B F T
(Restated)
(E75)

Share of net assets of an unlisted 1 JF £ 2L R 4% & E &2

jointly-controlled entity ZEEFHE 113,392 96,615

Particulars of the jointly-controlled entity indirectly held
by the Company are as follows:

ARRIEEFEZ HAEHE
T

Percentage of

BB

Place of Frik B 5t
Business registration Ownership Voting Profit  Principal
Name structure and operations interest power sharing  activity
= XBER AMRKCEwR BEEREZD RERE BoEFN XEBEHR
Ferry Company Corporate PRC 49 49 49 Provision
of ferry
services
£33 /N NG & 49 49 49 RHEH
PR 75
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18. INTEREST IN A JOINTLY-CONTROLLED ENTITY

—EZNFEWNA=1+H

18. MHEAFZEFER ZES @)

(Continued)
Extracts of the operating results and financial position HEZEGEE 2 REXERV R
of the jointly-controlled entity are as follows: gRAO R
2004 2003
—ZENF —EE=
HK$°000 HK$'000
B ¥ F T BT T
(Restated)
(E7)
Operating results for the BEMA=+HLEE
year ended 30 April IREHEE
Turnover = - 156,975 152,438
Profit before tax B %1 A & A 41,347 29,149
Tax A (7,584) (6,419)
Profit after tax R Fi 12 22 F| 33,763 22,730
Financial position ROA=+HZ
as at 30 April B 7% AR R
Non-current assets ERBEE 115,033 128,915
Current assets mEE E 208,458 159,695
Total assets BERE 323,491 288,610
Current liabilities mE A& 76,570 75,928
Non-current liabilities e EIN=E= 15,510 15,510
Total liabilities BERE 92,080 91,438
Net assets BEFE 231,411 197,172

m Zhu Kuan Development Company Limited BxX R ER A A
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18.

19.

INTEREST IN A JOINTLY-CONTROLLED ENTITY
(Continued)

The operating results of the jointly-controlled entity for
the year ended 30 April 2003 include the non-compliance
fine as set out in note 6 to the financial statements. The
Group's share of the net profit of the jointly-controlled
entity for the year, net of transfer to reserves, amounted
to HK$12,449,000 (2003: HK$6,277,000).

The Group’s share of post-acquisition retained profits of
the jointly-controlled entity as at 30 April 2004 amounted
to HK$25,458,000 (2003: HK$13,009,000).

INTEREST IN JOINTLY-CONTROLLED

OPERATION

The Group has entered into a joint venture arrangement
in the form of a jointly-controlled operation with an
independent third party to operate the Chinese Medicine
Valley in Zhuhai, the PRC. The Group has a 30%
participating interest in this joint venture. At 30 April
2004, the aggregate amounts of assets, liabilities,
revenue and losses recognised in these financial
statements in respect of the Group’s 30% participation
in this jointly-controlled operation were as follows:

—FTNFMA=A

18.

19.

REAFZFER 2ES @)

HAZEHEEEE =M A=1
HIEFE 2 EEEETRERIINK 5
BERIEREN 6 - REBRAFE
MEREFHBMhERERER 2
A A AE%12,449,000L (ZTZE=F : &
#6,277,0007T) °

AEER-_ZTZTWFMNA=THARE
REGER 2 WBERBAF A
25,458,000t (Z 2 = F : B
13,009,0007T) °

RERZEFRE 2 EH

AEBRE-FZBEIE=FIALRESZE
BRAFTILEELH UREFBEKE
RHRRZER AKERZAELER
B30%z2HEs N_TEWNFMOA
=tE BAKERZARZEHERZ
30%2 EREDEANMBHRRRZEE
BE - kS REBROT

Group

REH
2004 2003
—EENF —EE=F
HK$’000 HK$°000
BT T BT T
Assets BE 3,834 2,874
Liabilities & 663 567
Revenue W 2= 2,754 1,527
Losses fE518 65 515

BN REAER2LT Zhu Kuan Development Company Limited E
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20. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES 200 REEARZER
Group
REE
2004 2003
—EENF —EE=F
HK$'000 HK$°000

B FT BT IT

Share of net assets of unlisted MHIEEMEBtE AR 2

associates BEFE 1,959 2,157
The Group’s share of the net loss of the associates for REBRAFEEAM (LA R 2 EEF
the year amounted to HK$198,000 (2003: HK$429,000). B ABE198,000T (Z 2T =4 : B

429,0007T) °
The Group’s share of the post-acquisition accumulated AEER_FTTHWEFMA =+ B (b
losses of the associates as at 30 April 2004 amounted ERalzoWBERRAGTEBEIEARLEK
to HK$1,541,000 (2003: HK$1,343,000). 1,541,000 (Z 22 =% : B K

1,343,0007T) °

Particulars of the associates are as follows: BE AR 2 BOT
Percentage
of ownership
Place of interest
incorporation/  attributable
registration to the Group
Business and operations ARE&E®  Principal
Name structure HEMEK EEEXRER activity
=% EX 3 o R AR it B Bolk FEEK
Allways Internet Limited * Corporate Hong Kong 50 Investment
holding
B BEBAERAR NG BB 50 ®EEK
TKE TR K15 B B Corporate PRC 38  Software
BEBRAR * development
KEMRAGEEHR M NEC] H Y 38 REHM
MEARLQA *
* Not audited by Ernst & Young Hong Kong or other * AP 3E A Ernst & Young Hong Kong 3k
Ernst & Young International member firms. H fhErnst & Young International X

B RAEK o

m Zhu Kuan Development Company Limited kA% R HR A A
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21. INVESTMENTS 21. RE
Group Company
AEH RATH
2004 2003 2004 2003
“ERERE —TT=F ZBFEREFE —_TT=F
HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000
BT EETT E¥FT BETT
Long term investment: REIEE
Non-trading unlisted equity JEEEFE L™
investment, at cost REKRE -
B AME 584 584 — _
Short term investments: HHEE
Hong Kong listed equity EELETMERE
investments, at ®E -
market value EmE 3,698 2,420 3,698 2,420
The market value of the Group’s short term investments RBALENHHREER  ANEEEH
at the date of approval of these financial statements B R MEL AER3,909,000T (=ZF
was approximately HK$3,909,000 (2003: HK$4,786,000). T =4 : H#4,786,0007T) °
22. PREPAYMENTS AND DEPOSITS 22. BERNREERES
Group
rEHE
2004 2003
—EENF —EE=F
HK$'000 HK$°000
EBEFT B F T
Rental prepayments SEEREiEk 5,084 5,338
Deposits for acquisition of WEBEEELS
fixed assets 1,271 89
6,355 5,427

BRXREAER AT Zhu Kuan Development Company Limited [k
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23. DUE FROM A JOINTLY-CONTROLLED ENTITY 23, EWRHBEZHEBRRESEBEIX
AND A JOINT VENTURE PARTNER
The amounts due from a jointly-controlled entity and a FEREREHEEBREERHERITE
joint venture partner are unsecured, interest-free and EEE - 2B REETEERE -
have no fixed terms of repayment.
24. INVENTORIES 2. BFE
Group
rEH
2004 2003
—EEOEF —EE=F
HK$°000 HK$°000
EBEFT B F T
Food, beverages and souvenirs HEE 7 RY - SE
held for resale K422 2,400 2,385
None of the inventories were carried at net realisable MEEAFENEE B 2 238,587
value at the balance sheet date (2003: Nil). R(ZEEZ=F : &) o
25. TRADE RECEIVABLES 25. BEREZFIIKRN
A defined credit policy is maintained within the Group. REBXEREEERR BRETHE
The general credit terms range from one month to three REFBEREBE2BEFEZETNAEAZ
months, except for certain well-established customers EREEHIN  —REEHE—Z==18
with a good repayment history, where the terms are A -BUEFHERSEER - A5H
extended to 18 months. Each customer has a maximum BOE MR RS IR B R 2 FEMRIR R - A
credit limit. The Group seeks to maintain strict control BIEEERR - aREEATEBHRTA
over its outstanding receivables to minimise credit risk. BRI &4 o
Overdue balances are regularly reviewed by senior
management.
I Zhu Kuan Development Company Limited H (R AR A T
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25. TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continued) 25. BEWE SRR &)
An aged analysis of the trade receivables at the balance REE B 2 B E 50K 508 # < IRER
sheet date, net of provisions, is as follow: DT -
Group
rEH
2004 2003
—EENF —EE=F
HK$'000 HK$°000
BT T BT T
Current — 3 months BlEf = 3@ A 10,063 7,397
4 — 6 months AZ 61 A 2,740 4,403
7 — 12 months 7E12{8 A 6,305 3,909
13 — 18 months 132 181& A 3,132 4,955
22,240 20,664
As at 30 April 2004, the Group had a receivable from A-ETNFMA=+H » AEBREIK
the Zhuhai Municipal Government arising from the use BT R A% B 2 8 JE & e m ol 3%
of the Group’s hotel facilities amounting to approximately 2478 113,008,0000T (ZEE=4F : &
HK$13,008,000 (2003: HK$11,059,000). Such balance #11,059,0007T) 2 FEWIGRIE © & A5 EATE
was included in trade receivables under current assets. FEWE ZRFAAREEEE N5 BE o &k
The trade receivable with the Zhuhai Municipal B ZEWRE SRR TERE - 4
Government is unsecured, interest-free and the credit ERELFYHRMZEERR -
term granted was as mentioned above.
26. DUE FROM A MINORITY SHAREHOLDER OF 26. EWHMEBARLERREIRK

A SUBSIDIARY

The balance is unsecured, interest-free and will be settled
by the minority shareholder’s entitlement to future
dividends from Ferry Company as detailed in note 40 to
the financial statements.

AR BEEA - 0B KA A B RE
Ff EE 40Tt D i AR R ER & 8 X A B 18
2B e

BN REAER2LT Zhu Kuan Development Company Limited m
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27. DUE FROM RELATED COMPANIES 27. BEWBAERATAXRXK
Particulars of the amounts due from related companies FEWRAENR R RFBLOT

are as follows:

Group KEH

Maximum

amount
At outstanding At
30 April during the year 1 May
2004 F R R 2003
Name Relationship —EENEF BEREZ —Z2Z=F
=x B & MA=+H EeE8¥E ®RA—H
HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$°000

EBETT EBETIT EETT

Macau-Mondial Travel Fellow subsidiary 5,398 5,398 5,398
& Tours Ltd. of the Company
(“Macau-Mondial”)

RPIIRIR IR 25 5 R 2 A ZN/NES| A S = AN
(DRPIERIK])

Zhuhai Special Economic Fellow subsidiary 458 458 458
Zone Hotel of the Company
("Zhuhai SEZ Hotel")

e R AEE 2NN A S = N

(MRBEFRAXBEE]D

5,856 5,856
Provisions B (5,856) (5,856)
The amounts due from related parties are unsecured JEWBEATRATDBEEAREE °
and interest-free.
The amounts due from Macau-Mondial and Zhuhai SEZ JE OB P 3R BR R K08 15 [ KOE B R 3T
Hotel represent the outstanding balance arising from ERBATFERBEENEZREER
the sale of tickets in previous years. Full provision in o REREEREFEL2BEE -

respect of the amounts was made in a prior year.

m Zhu Kuan Development Company Limited kA% R HR A A
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28. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 28. BERBELEEY
Group Company
AEME KA 7
2004 2003 2004 2003
—EENE —TE=F ZEETNFE —_TE=F
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$°000
BT EEFrT EBE¥FT AEETT
Cash and bank balances e RIRTEH 97,065 97,631 2,317 4,054
Time deposits with original EHER - RE
maturity: FH -
Within three months =@AR 25,248 14,110 12,140 14,110
Over three months BiE=1EA 23,756 9,739 — —
146,069 121,480 14,457 18,164

At the balance sheet date, the cash and bank balances
of the Group denominated in Renminbi (“RMB")
amounted to HK$111,675,000 (2003: HK$72,394,000).
The RMB is not freely convertible into other currencies.

However, under the PRC’s Foreign Exchange Control
Regulations and Administration of Settlement, Sale and
Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Group is
permitted to exchange RMB for other currencies through
banks authorised to conduct foreign exchange business.

REER  mEEUARE (TARE])

TEEZRERRITHE

BREE

111,675,000t ( = & T = 4F
72,394,000 7T) - ARBETSERLKR
BEHMEE - Al BEFRHZINEE
FHEG R EE -  EERMESERTE
AEEREEBERBETINEES
BITBEARBLBAEHMER o
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—EZNFEWNA=1+H

29. TRADE PAYABLES 29. EFHEBZERN
An aged analysis of the trade payables as at the balance REE R RN E SRR 2R DT
sheet date is as follows: T
Group
TEE
2004 2003
—EENF —EE=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
B ¥ F T BT
Current — 3 months BN HA = 31& A 5,154 5,783
4 — 6 months AZ 61 A 734 1,101
7 — 12 months 7E12{8 A 371 673
13 — 18 months 13Z 181E A 2,415 2,387
8,674 9,944
30. CONSTRUCTION PAYABLES 300 BENIEXNE
Construction payables, which represent amounts due to BENIEFEEENTIEABD &
construction contractors, are unsecured, interest-free and HWiF - RERBRSTIREEHZIERE
repayable in accordance with the terms of the respective BZRA
construction contracts.
31. INTEREST-BEARING BANK LOANS, SECURED 31. FFEHRITER(BER)
Group
TEE
2004 2003
—EENE T =4F
HK$'000 HK$'000
B¥F T BT
Interest-bearing bank loans AR —FRNEEZETE
repayable within one year IRITE XK 9,346 11,215

The interest-bearing bank loans are secured by pledges
over certain leasehold land and buildings of the Group
(note 13).

m Zhu Kuan Development Company Limited BxX R ER A A
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32.

DEFERRED TAX

The movement in deferred tax liabilities of the Group

during the year is as follows:

—EENFEWNA=1+H

32. EEHE

T

AEERFAZELEHRAREBE ZE BN

Revaluation of
leasehold land

and buildings
EfAEEIHRET
HK$'000
B F T
At 1 May 2003: R-ZZTEZE=FHRA—A:
As previously reported BN A 2 3 —
Prior period adjustment: A AR -
SSAP 12 — restatement of deferred tax S EHBEDE125F — BHELTFIE 15,374
As restated Rl 15,374
Deferred tax debited to equity ATAREZD 2 BEEFIE 1,868
At 30 April 2004 MR-ZZETWMEMA=+H 17,242
At 1 May 2002: AN—_EE_FHA A :
As previously reported 2 Al £ —
Prior period adjustment: A B 2
SSAP 12 — restatement of deferred tax S EBERFE 129 — BHELEFKIE 14,199
As restated g7l 14,199
Deferred tax debited to equity FrARE R 2 LR IE 1,175
At 30 April 2003 (as restated) R-EZ=FNMA=+H (K& 15,374

BN REAER2LT Zhu Kuan Development Company Limited E
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32.

DEFERRED TAX (Continued)

The Group has tax losses arising in Hong Kong of
HK$30,728,000 (2003: HK$26,705,000) that are
available indefinitely for offsetting against future taxable
profits of the company in which the losses arose.
Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect
of these losses as they have arisen in the company that
has been loss-making for sometimes.

SSAP 12 (Revised) was adopted during the year, as further
explained in note 2 to the financial statements. This
change in accounting policy has resulted in an increase
in the Group’s deferred tax liabilities as at 30 April 2003
and 2002 by HK$15,374,000 and HK$14,199,000,
respectively, and the corresponding amounts have been
debited to the asset revaluation reserve at the same
dates. In addition, an amount of HK$88,000 attributable
to the jointly-controlled entity has been credited to the
interest in a jointly-controlled entity and debited to the
asset revaluation reserve as at 30 April 2003, respectively.
HK$7,600,000 attributable to the
acquisition of a jointly-controlled entity in relation to
the fair value adjustments arising from its acquisition by
the Group in a prior year has been credited to the interest

Furthermore,

in a jointly-controlled entity and debited to the goodwill
reserve as at 30 April 2003 and 2002.

m Zhu Kuan Development Company Limited kA% R HR A A

—FTNFMA=A

32.

EERIE (&)

AREBRBAELEHEBEEK
30,728,000t (Z E T = F : B &
26,705,0007T) ° —HEEFEHJ%FH A3 8H B
SZEEBEBZ AR ZARKRERT & F o
AREBEWER N EEEBERRLETHIEE
E EAE@AEED—BEBNUAR—ES
B2 RAIFMEAE -

FARMSATEHERF 125 (KB
) HBEERMERERMNE2 EE
AHREHERAEER =TT =FRK
—EE_FNA=Zt+HZELEHREARE
2 Al 1% hn & ¥ 15,374,0007T K 7B &
14,199,0007T * MABE € REE R E A&t
ABEEGHFHE - I HEEHEER
ﬁﬁfaﬁxlﬁiﬁﬁzas,oooﬁaw TE=F
MA=+HDRIBELREGEE

s R ABEERMFHE o WO RAK
BREFRBARZEHERAELZR
FEERARBEMAREFHERRE AR

7,600,000 LBt AR ZEE=FR_-F
Z_FOA=THZRAREHER
o WKk BE R EREE -
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—FTNFMA=A

33. SHARE CAPITAL 33, KA
Shares % 3
2004 2003
—EENE —EFE=F
HK$°000 HK$'000
B¥F T BT T
Authorised: JETE ¢
2,000,000,000 shares of 2,000,000,0008% & i A 1B
HK$0.10 each & #0.1070 2 & 1D 200,000 200,000
Issued and fully paid: BEITRERE :
799,000,000 shares of 799,000,0000% & % M &
HK$0.10 each & #0.1070 2 & 1D 79,900 79,900
Share options BB R R
Details of the Company’s share option schemes and the RRA R 2 EARER 8 A RIRERET 81 31T
share options issued under the schemes are included in 2 BB HE 2 5T 18 H P B 7% 3R 3k BT 52 34
note 34 to the financial statements. A o
34. SHARE OPTION SCHEME 34. BRESE

The Company operates a share option scheme (the
“Scheme”) for the purpose of providing incentives and
rewards to eligible participants for their contribution to
the Group and/or to enable the Group to recruit and
retain high-calibre employees and attract human
resources that are valuable to the Group and any entity
in which the Group holds any equity interest (“Invested
Entity”). Eligible participants of the Scheme include the
directors and employees of the Company, its subsidiaries
or any Invested Entity, suppliers and customers, of the
Group or any Invested Entity, any person or entity that
provides research, development or other technological
support to the Group or any Invested Entity, and any
shareholder of any member of the Group or any Invested
Entity or any holder of any securities issued by any
member of the Group or any Invested Entity. The Scheme
became effective on 26 September 2002 and, unless
otherwise terminated or amended, will remain in force
for 10 years.

AARZAERES ([FHE)) - B&E
EREMHEERSEEHAEBEATE
HZEBRSERNEEREAER L
BeExREE  UERSIEAEERE
MAEEFETMBRAERSZEE ([
BEEDIERHEAZAL EIZEE
WEEEREAAR - ENBRASE
MIEEBERZESRES ASEHME
AIEEERZEHEERES MASE
REMEEERENRE AR EMR
Bz EAALTHER  ARKREE
ERIAK B A RS IXE E S 2 E (A%
HAAEEEMAKE QAR REMIEEE
AT ZAEMNESZE@MIEZEEA © 5
R T _FAA -+ NHEEW
BRIEAE M 5 N AR IESEFT + & Bl S
ZEREAETE -
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34.

m Zhu Kuan Development Company Limited kA% R HR A A

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

The maximum number of shares which may be issued
upon exercise of all outstanding share options granted
and yet to be exercised under the Scheme and any other
share option schemes of the Company must not exceed
30% of the total number of shares in issue from time to
time. The total number of shares which may be issued
upon exercise of all share options to be granted under
the Scheme may not exceed 159,800,000 shares, which
represents 10% of the total number of shares in issue
as refreshed in the annual general meeting held on 25
September 2003 (i.e. not exceeding 79,900,000 shares
in the Company), plus the 79,900,000 share options
previously granted. Share options which lapse in
accordance with the terms of the Scheme or any other
share option schemes of the Company will not be
counted for the purpose of calculating the 10% limit.
The Company may seek approval of the shareholders in
a general meeting for refreshing the 10% limit under
the Scheme, save that the total number of shares which
may be issued upon exercise of all share options to be
granted under the Scheme and any other share option
schemes of the Company under the limit as refreshed
shall not exceed 10% of the total number of shares in
issue as at the date of approval of the limit as refreshed.
Share options previously granted under the Scheme or
any other share option schemes of the Company
(including share options outstanding, cancelled, lapsed
or exercised in accordance with the terms of the Scheme
or any other share option schemes of the Company) will
not be counted for the purpose of calculating the limit
as refreshed. The total number of shares issued and to
be issued upon exercise of the share options granted to
each eligible participant (including both exercised and
outstanding options) in any 12-month period shall not
exceed 1% of the total number of shares in issue.

—FTNFMA=A

34,

BRESTE (@)

BT 8 R AN 2 &) (] & Ath BE A A 51 &)
EREERRTEZBREEZHTE
BAFRETZBROESHE @ 6 E£THE
BRAAADITBERETROLHE 2
30% - RIBFAE G THRE 2 EREES
HITERY TETLROHBE - 61T
15#818 159,800,000/ ' (EREN_TT =
FRAZTHRHRBOZEREBFRAEE
FEBITRMBEZ210% (BITEEBAKN
A AAE1H 79,900,0000%) + 0k e AT T
279,900,000 fE JX#E - BEEE10% R
BB - ARIRET 2 Sk AR AT H fh BE AR
BB 2GR R B 2 BRI T T &t
o ARRARBEARE ESRAREH
EEFAEET Z210%R 5 - HERE
B} 2N X B A fa] B Ath B AR AE AT B S TR
B BREEEHITHERA TET 2R
MEE  RIBEHRE & HETSHEA
AARRBEZEFNREE AE TR
PREZ210%  EE B FBEER - LA
BIEET B s A A B E R B b B AR A 5t &)
RHZBERE (BERAITE  25EHE -
B R ERBEET B AR &) [ E b
BT 8 2 AT 2 BB AR HE) BT T
AE o RTBERAEERDEE 2 BERE
(BEBEITERMARITEZBERE) R E
A+ =—EAHMEETFEZEETRAT
BI2BRHBERTESBBEERITRGE
EHZ21% °
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34,

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

Each grant of share options to a director, chief executive
or substantial shareholder of the Company, or to any of
their respective associates, under the Scheme must
comply with the requirements of Rule 17.04 of the Listing
Rules and must be subject to approval by the
independent non-executive directors to whom share
options have not been granted. In addition, any grant
of share options to a substantial shareholder or an
independent non-executive director of the Company, or
to any of their respective associates, which would result
in the shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of
all share options already granted and to be granted
(including share options exercised, cancelled and
outstanding) to such person in the 12-month period up
to and including the date of such grant in excess of
0.1% of the shares of the Company in issue and with
an aggregate value (based on the closing price of the
Company's shares at the date of each grant) in excess of
HK$5 million, are subject to prior approval from
shareholders in a general meeting.

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted
within 28 days from the date of the offer, upon payment
of a nominal consideration of HK$1 in total by the
grantee. The exercise period of the share options granted
is determinable by the directors, save that such period
may not be more than 10 years from the date of the
offer of the share options, subject to the provisions for
early termination set out in the Scheme. There is no
minimum period for which an option must be held before
the exercise of the subscription right attaching thereto,
except as otherwise imposed by the board of directors.

The exercise price of the share options is determinable
by the directors, but may not be less than the highest of
(i) The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited’s (the
“Stock Exchange”) closing price of the Company’s shares
on the date of the offer of the share options; (ii) the
average Stock Exchange’s closing price of the Company’s
shares for the five trading days immediately preceding
the date of the offer; and (iii) the nominal value of the
Company’s shares.

—FTNFMA=A

BRESE (@)

BABREFERARAES « TTHREAEH
REZRRKTAEESEBZHEAL
BT  MHAEEST EMRAE17.04
BZHE  WEEBKRER THEREZ
B IEMITESE 2B E o AN 0 AR
AR ETERRFIBILIEANITEEHEM
BESBZHE AN TR BT (ERE
BEREHEZFELE B+ — A HE
(BREZELBEHS B2HTEELERE
B ZBRE(REETE - BB
RITEE 2 B HE) MEE1T R FREIT 2
HBBARRARBEZEITRMD 20.1% @ MK
EROBHAQRBRGZHTENE -
#E{EB BB 5,000,000 @ BIBE LK
BRI R A S EHbfE o

RERLZEREATRES 2 HiE28H
M - AR AN AR RN BRE R
REREEI00TZRBIERE - IR
HEREZTEMETRESEETE @ H
BB T BHEBRETEAMRESR
RIEBGXIREBREZ BEFT+F - &
FEFEXAMRT  BRRTERRE
PrMt R ER BABBRBZRER
BERH -

BRETEERESFETE  EASEER
MEERLEREEBARRFARNDES
BBMERZMARRE ([BRA]) 2 W
MmE: () ARAROHREEIRZ B A
hEAXSAEBRMAZFHETEX
(i) AAAEMHEE(UEREERE)
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34. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to
dividends or to vote at shareholders’ meetings.

The following share options were granted and remained

—FTNFMA=A

34. BRHESE )

BB EE TRHAABIRERE IR K
RAELBRRZERN -

FARBFILERERIDARITEZE

outstanding under the Scheme during the year: fr#ERT :
Price of the
Company's
shares at
At 1 May 2003 and Exercise grant date
Name or at 30 April 2004 Date of price of options***
category of R-BE=F grant of of share REBRE
participant EA-BK share options*  Exercise period of options** R ZH
SEERE R-BENEF B share options R o NG|
58 A mA=+H BREAS BRECEDD TEE  ROER
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Directors
EZ
Mr. Zhu Lifu 2,700,000 17 April 2003 1 May 2003 to 16 April 2013 0.25 0.23
RIKFEE “TT=F “TT=FHA-HZE
mA++H “E-—=FmA+H
Mr. Yu Huaguo 2,860,000 17 April 2003 1 May 2003 to 16 April 2013 0.25 0.23
RER KL —T%= “TZ=-FRA-HZ
mA++tR —E-=4WmA+A
Mr. Gu Zengcali 2,250,000 17 April 2003 1 May 2003 to 16 April 2013 0.25 0.23
BET K4 —TT= “TE=FHA-HZE
mA++tA “ZE-=4WMA+A
Mr. Jin Tao 2,700,000 17 April 2003 1 May 2003 to 16 April 2013 0.25 0.23
EREE —T%= “ZE=FHAR-HZE
mA++H “E-—=FmA+H
Mr. Yu Jinyao 2,700,000 17 April 2003 1 May 2003 to 16 April 2013 0.25 0.23
RIREEL —T%= “—TE=FHAA-HZE
mA++tR —E-=4WmA+A
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34. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

—FTNFMA=A

34. BRHESE )

Price of the
Company's
shares at
At 1 May 2003 and Exercise grant date
Name or at 30 April 2004 Date of price of options***
category of R=BB=F grant of of share REBRE
participant EA-AK share options*  Exercise period of options** RHZH
SHRERA R-ZEMF R i share options BB IR ZARAH
A MA=t+H BREBH* BRECEDAB THEE>*  ROBEHR
HK$ HK$
BET BT
Directors (Continued)
B (8)
Mr. Chen Yonglin 2,700,000 17 April 2003 1 May 2003 to 16 April 2013 0.25 0.23
BRK AR5 —TT=F ZTE=-FHA-HE
MA++R —E-=fWA+AA
Mr. Wu Hangiu 2,700,000 17 April 2003 1 May 2003 to 16 April 2013 0.25 0.23
RERSLE —TT=F “TE=FHAA-HZE
MA++A —E-=FWA+AH
Mr. Chen Yuanhe 2,700,000 17 April 2003 1 May 2003 to 16 April 2013 0.25 0.23
BRI A% A —ER=F “TE=FHAA-HZE
MA++A “E-=FWA+H
Mr. Liang Han 1,000,000 17 April 2003 1 May 2003 to 16 April 2013 0.25 0.23
REEHE —TT=F “TE=FHA-HE
MA++R —E-=fWA+AAH
Mr. Hui Chiu Chung 1,000,000 17 April 2003 1 May 2003 to 16 April 2013 0.25 0.23
FRAEE —TT=F “TE=FHA-HZE
mA++A —ZT-=FWA+AH
Mr. Chu Yu Lin, David 1,000,000 17 April 2003 1 May 2003 to 16 April 2013 0.25 0.23
KB - —ER=F —TE=FHA-HZE
MA++A —E-=FWA+H
24,310,000
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34. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued) 3. BRESE (#)
Price of the
Company's
shares at
At 1 May 2003 and Exercise grant date
Name or at 30 April 2004 Date of price of options***
category of R=-BB=%F grant of of share RERE
participant EA-BK share options*  Exercise period of options** R ZH
SRERE R-ZENF & i share options 8 B ZADT
HER mA=t+H BREBH* BRECEAB TREE>  ROEHR*
HK$ HK$
BET BET
Directors (resigned during the year)
EE (REFARME)
Mr. Ouyang Guoliang 3,180,000 17 April 2003 1 May 2003 to 16 April 2013 0.25 0.23
R 5 B R OE & —TE=F “TE=FHA-HZE
MA++A —T-ZFfWA+RHE
Mr. He Weilong 3,180,000 17 April 2003 1 May 2003 to 16 April 2013 0.25 0.23
MEELE “ET=F “ZE=FHA-HZE
MA++A —Z-ZFWA+RAE
Mr. Liang Xuebing 2,700,000 17 April 2003 1 May 2003 to 16 April 2013 0.25 0.23
RELKHE —TT=F “EZ-FRA-HZE
mMAt++AH —E-ZFWA+RE
Mr. Liang Caijia 2,700,000 17 April 2003 1 May 2003 to 16 April 2013 0.25 0.23
RIERE —TE=F “TE=FHA-HZE
MA++A —T-ZFfWA+RHE
11,760,000
Other employees
HitE &
In aggregate 20,210,000 17 April 2003 1 May 2003 to 16 April 2013 0.25 0.23
ot === i =
mAt++A —E-ZFWA+RE
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34. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued) 3. BRESE (#)
Price of the
Company's
shares at
At 1 May 2003 and Exercise grant date

Name or at 30 April 2004 Date of price of options***

category of R-BE=% grant of of share REBRE

participant EA-AK share options*  Exercise period of options** RHZH

SHRERA R-ZEMF R i share options i8R A N

HE R mA=1+H BREAS BRECEDS TEE™  ROEK

HK$ HK$
BT BET

Others

Hit

In aggregate 23,620,000 17 April 2003 1 May 2003 to 16 April 2013 0.25 0.23

it “TT=F “TT=FHA-HZE

mA++H —E-=F@mATAH
79,900,000

z The vesting period of the share options is from the S BREZFEBEREZBRENTE
date of the grant until the commencement of the HA R P 4R BRF LE ©
exercise period.

e The exercise price of the share options is subject to *x AR M 2 7 R {8 PT AR BB R AR SR AT AR 3%
adjustment in the case of rights or bonus issues, or 17 IARRRA 2 HEMBBUES T
other similar changes in the Company’s share capital. LAFR 2 -

***  The price of the Company’s shares disclosed as at the ek RERERDBREEZAQER

date of the grant of the share options is the Stock

NERTIAREHBREZRZXZBE

Exchange’s closing price on the trading day of the grant BEAZ Pz W (B o

of the share options.

At the balance sheet date, the Company had 79,900,000
share options outstanding under the Scheme. The
exercise in full of these share options would, under the
present capital structure of the Company, result in the
issue of 79,900,000 additional ordinary shares of the
Company and additional share capital of HK$7,990,000

REER » ARQR¥EE 79,900,000 18
BTl M AR1TE 2 BARE - RIBAQF
MITZ/ALERE  2HTEZZERE
15 38 By N A 7] %97 79,900,0008% 58 4) &
AR N EE A 7B 7,990,0007T 2 AN AR
N5 #11,985,0007T 2 %10 3% B (Rt 3

and share premium of HK$11,985,000 (before issue TFER) o

expenses).
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34. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

Subsequent to the balance sheet date, on 5 July 2004, a
total of 31,900,000 share options were granted to certain
directors of the Company in respect of their services to
the Group in the forthcoming year. These share options
vest on 5 July 2004 and have an exercise price of
HK$0.34 per share and an exercise period ranging from
23 July 2004 to 4 July 2014. The price of the Company’s
shares at the date of grant was HK$0.34.

35. RESERVES
(a) Group

The amounts of the Group’'s reserves and the
movements therein for the current and prior years
are presented in the consolidated statement of
changes in equity.

The contributed surplus of the Group represents
the difference between the nominal value of the
shares of the subsidiaries acquired, together with
the surplus arising on the acquisition of the site
of the Group’s theme park, pursuant to the Group
reorganisation on 30 April 1998, and the nominal
value of the Company’s shares issued under this
Group reorganisation.

In accordance with the relevant PRC regulations,
the subsidiaries, jointly-controlled entity and
associate established in the PRC are required to
transfer a certain percentage of their profits after
tax to the statutory reserve funds. Subject to
certain restrictions set out in the relevant PRC
regulations and these subsidiaries’, jointly-
controlled entity’s and associate’s articles of
association, the statutory reserve funds may be
used either to offset losses, or for capitalisation
issues by way of paid-up capital.

m Zhu Kuan Development Company Limited kA% R HR A A

—FTNFMA=A

34,

35.

BRESTE (@)

REEBRR  R_ZEZEWNFLAHRAB

ARARETESERHBERRFRASE
B AR 7% M R T & $£31,900,00017 & %
o ZEBRER-_ZZTNF LA AH

REE -

TEBAFKRAE034T 0 MIT

EHENAE-_FTTOFLA -+ =AE
—HELAMAE - ARRBRHOHRER
HEMBMZERAERK034T -

e
(a)

AEH

AEERAEFERBEFEZMH
HERARREREDE2IINGARE
HmEEBRA -

AEBZEBBHREMEIENB
ARBRPZAEERREARH
R—ANANFORA=+BZ&E
EHEBEAEETEAR Z T
FREAZ BHEREBEEEEAR
ARREBRTRMAEMERZZ
B o

RETFEBERERA - E*IWI
ZHWBRR - KEZEGHERER
M“Tﬂmkﬁ%ﬁééﬂz

n%%k&i%ﬁ@ﬂ°ﬁ
F@HE@&W&W%“
HT%&R&%%QTZ@%@
RARFAH 2ETRH - AT
e AAEHEER S ABER
KT AEEARLET -



Notes to Financial Statements

B 75 R 2R Bt 5

30 April 2004

35. RESERVES (Continued)
(a) Group (Continued)

Certain amounts of goodwill arising on the
acquisition of subsidiaries in prior years remain
eliminated against consolidated reserves, as
explained in note 16 to the financial statements.

(b) Company

—FTNFMA=A

35. f#fE (@)
(a) #A&%E#)

NEA TSR M IR 16PT A - REF
WENBARMELEZHBZE
TEREREEHEERETEHH -

(b) AAF
Share
premium Contributed Accumulated
account surplus losses Total
IR 43 % (B B BEARL REBR B
HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$'000

BT BET BT BT

Balance at 1 May 2002 R-_ZEZT_FHA—HBZ

g 359,599 628,440 (10,190) 977,849

Net loss for the year NEEEBFHE — = (9,590) (9,590)
At 30 April 2003 and RZEE=FWA=1H

at 1 May 2003 RZTE=FHA—H 359,599 628,440 (19,780) 968,259

Net loss for the year NEEEBFHE — = (7,009) (7,009)

At 30 April 2004 R-ZSZENEMA=1+H 359,599 628,440 (26,789) 961,250

The contributed surplus of the Company
represents the excess of the then combined net
asset values of the subsidiaries acquired pursuant
to the reorganisation scheme referred to in note
35(a), over the nominal value of the Company’s
shares issued in exchange therefor. Under the
Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended),
the contributed surplus of the Company is
distributable to shareholders in certain
circumstances.

ADF 2 E MBS R BH
35(a)F ik 2 B 40 £t B AT U R B
ARREH 2 A G AEFERY
ARABERATES 2B 2
EEMEM2EE - REGRE
—AN—FRFE BB 21
% AR ZEMBBARF L
ERTHET &SRR -
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36. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

At the balance sheet date, neither the Group nor the
Company had any significant contingent liabilities (2003:
Nil).

37. PLEDGE OF ASSETS

Details of the Group’s bank loans secured by assets of
the Group are disclosed in note 31 to the financial
statements.

38. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS
(a) As lessor

The Group leases certain of its leasehold land
and buildings (note 713) under operating lease
arrangements, with leases negotiated for terms
ranging from 1 to 25 years. The terms of the
leases generally also require the tenants to pay
security deposits and provide for periodic rent
adjustments according to the then prevailing
market conditions.

At 30 April 2004, the Group had total future
minimum lease receivables under non-cancellable
operating leases with its tenants falling due as

—ETNFEENA=+H

36.

37.

38.

HZREE

i

HH ARESIARFBECHNE

RERBE(ZTT=F: §&) -
BEEZHEH
PAZS 65 8 & B (R 130 M BUS 2 A R B4R

TE

REABHR M B HRERME3 -

REENRH
() fEREHBA

AEBDRELEHOLZHEE
HEFTHELHREF (HiF
13)  EFZEZHERRN T 15
E25%F - HERR —REREH
AXNREFS  XREEATIS
MREHAERES -

R-ZEZEWNFMOMA=1tH " K&
BR®E AT ARFT 2 T R RH
REMOBMEK 2 &P RKHME

follows: SHRELT
Group
AEE
2004 2003
—EENE —EE=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
EBEFT B F T
Within one year —F R 7,400 8,096
In the second to FE_FEERF
fifth years, inclusive (BREEEMF) 26,939 14,957
After five years hE% 9,768 1,017
44,107 24,070
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38. OPERATING

LEASE ARRANGEMENTS

(Continued)

(b)

As lessee

The Group leases certain of its office property,
hotel and port properties and facilities under
operating lease arrangements. Leases for
properties are negotiated for terms ranging from
1 to 44 years.

At 30 April 2004, the Group had future minimum
lease payments under non-cancellable operating
leases falling due as follows:

—ETNFEENA=+H

38. REMHENZRH @)

(b) fERFEBEA

AEBBOMAZTYE  BHEH
BOWMENRRELDRELEH
MLZHMEE - ZFEVEHENZH
EHEHRBRN FI1FEL4F -

R-ZFTEFMA=1tH "  &&
BRE A B 2 £ E O
BN Z&DREBEERBELOT :

Group

rEH
2004 2003
—EENE —EE=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T B F T
Within one year —F R 11,811 11,354

In the second to FE_FEFERF

fifth year, inclusive (BREEEMF) 41,623 40,938
After five years hE%& 294,672 303,653
348,106 355,945

The Company had no operating lease
commitments at the balance sheet date (2003:
Nil).

REEH @ AN F) 17 £ (] 42 & T8 49 7%
B(ZZEZ=F : &) -
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39. COMMITMENTS

In addition to the operating leases commitments detailed
in note 38 above, the Group had the following
commitments at the balance sheet date:

—EZNFEWNA=1+H

39. &g

B b SCPM RE 385 il 2 48 & A A9 R HESD -
AEEREERZAEWT:

Group

REME
2004 2003
—g2ENE  -TT=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
BETFT EBETT

Capital commitments BEAREREBEETA
contracted for:
Acquisition of fixed assets WEEE F & E 934 2,894
Capital injection into m b E A REAE R
a subsidiary 2,350 —
3,284 2,894

The Company had no commitments at the balance sheet
date (2003: Nil).
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40.

—ETNFEENA=+H

CONNECTED AND RELATED PARTY 40. BEEXZNRBEALIRS

TRANSACTIONS

In addition to those disclosed elsewhere in the financial PREF TSR A MBBOEAEEBEEIN - FRX
statements, the Group had the following material AEEBETINERNBFEALRS @ TE
transactions with related parties, which also constituted KEMBAMERE LBERS:

connected transactions as defined under the Listing Rules,

during the year:

Name Notes Nature 2004 2003
ATER i ME —gemE  —TI=F
HK$’'000 HK$°000
BETF T B TFT
Zhuhai Holiday Resort Co., Ltd (i) Rental expenses 8,500 8,500
(the “Resort Company”)
KEEBNERAR (NEBNAF]) ek
Zhu Kuan (HK) (i) Rental expenses 252 504
Rk (BE) e
Ferry Company (ii) Port service fees 19,775 18,644
3 /NG| B0 RBEE
Minority shareholder (the (iif) Rental expenses 2,848 1,576
“Minority Shareholder”) of
Jiuzhou Port Company
AMBRR 2P HRE (TDHRKRE]) e
Notes: Bt
(i) The rental expenses paid to Resort Company and Zhu (i) B FTARRER R ERFERN A
Kuan (HK), fellow subsidiaries of the Company, were AIRHEN (FEB) ZHEHASZ H2EHR
calculated by reference to the respective tenancy EBZHERZETE - BHExx (BH)
agreements. The rental agreement with Zhu Kuan (HK) SN HERZER _EE=F1A
was terminated on 31 October 2003. The Group has =+—RA&KIE - AEEERERNA
made a rental prepayment of HK$4,250,000 (2003: Al BT S B ¥ 4,250,000 (=
HK$4,000,000) to Resort Company which was included T =4 : B ¥4,000,0005T) 0 WE
in prepayment, deposits and other receivables under RZZEZNFNA=THFARDE

current asset as at 30 April 2004.

EETZENFIR R REMBEK

IR e
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40. CONNECTED AND RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(ii) Jiuzhou Port Company, a subsidiary, received agency
commission fees and service fees (“Port service fee”)
for the provision of agency services for the selling of
ferry tickets to passengers and management services of
the berthing facilities of Zhuhai’s Jiuzhou Port to Ferry
Company, a jointly-controlled entity. The service fee is
charged at a rate of 23.5% on the gross proceeds from
the sale of ferry tickets.

(iii) Jiuzhou Port Company has entered into certain lease
agreements with the Minority Shareholder as follows:

(@) In 1994, Jiuzhou Port Company was granted by
the Minority Shareholder, who is also the major
shareholder of Ferry Company, the rights to use
the Jiuzhou Port facilities for a period of 20 years
for a lump sum payment of approximately
RMB33,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$31,000,000). Under a supplemental lease
agreement dated 1 March 2000, the terms of the
lease were re-negotiated and both parties agreed
to extend the lease to Jiuzhou Port Company for
the use of port facilities, which include certain
buildings and structures erected at the Jiuzhou
Port, to 40 years from that date, up to 27 March
2040, at no additional cost (note 14);

(b) Under a lease agreement dated 28 March 2000,
the Minority Shareholder agreed to lease to
Jiuzhou Port Company the land use rights in
respect of the land surrounding the Jiuzhou Port
at an annual rental of RMB515,000 (equivalent
to approximately HK$481,000) for a period of
40 years;

() Under a lease agreement dated 22 May 2001,
the Minority Shareholder agreed to lease to
Jiuzhou Port Company the plaza surrounding
the Jiuzhou Port at an annual rental of
RMB600,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$561,000) for a period of five years starting
from 1 June 2001;

m Zhu Kuan Development Company Limited kA% R HR A A
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40.

BEXZRBAEALIRS (&)

Hit:
)

(iii)

(&)

MEBARLMNERR MERFREMELE
Bim 5= 2 (IR IR e ) FLRIHE G &
BEHDARERENNEE ARG
ZE IR R ik BRI (R 2 B
ERBER(DEORKE]) - RIEE
BHERRMERALE Z223.5%H
HR o

ANERBRDHBRRMAETZLZET
HEmHMT :

(a) —AAWEE - LERE (A
AR EERE) BTN
MNBRREAILNBE O RMEZ
R B tE REAE—
RS AR B 4933,000,000
7t (A8 R % 4931,000,000
JC) c BEBE—_ZEZTZTF=F—
BRIz Etns - %M
NIERETEHE - BERS
RELERAMNEARERBD
B (BREEAMNBEEZZE
TFEFRER) 2B BZ
HRE-_ZTEWNZTF=A=_++
HAH40F - mHBEAEX N
BA (Kat14);

(b) BER_ZEZZEF=A_F+N
BRIz HERZE - LEIRE
REBANERE L £
FRERETFAMERR - B
H40F BFEHESAARE
515,0007C (M E R B E L
481,0007T) :

() BER-_ZEZ—FRA_-_+—=
BRI Z2HEHE - VEBRE
AESANEREZESHE
FANERR BT —F
NA—BREHEF 554
% A AR®600,0007T (HHER
7 #5 49561,0007T) ¢
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40. CONNECTED AND RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)
Notes: (Continued)
(i) (Continued)
(d)  Under a lease agreement dated 8 January 2003,

the Minority Shareholder agreed to lease to
Jiuzhou Port Company the office premises at
an annual rental of approximately RMB755,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$706,000) for
a period of one year starting from 1 January
2003. The lease agreement was renewed with
the same terms and rental of approximately
RMB755,000 for a period of two years starting
from 1 January 2004;

(e) Under a lease agreement dated 9 January 2003,
the Minority Shareholder agreed to lease to
Jiuzhou Port Company certain other port
facilities at Jiuzhou Port adjacent to that
referred to in (a) above at an annual rental of
RMB960,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$897,000) for a period of five years starting
from 1 January 2003; and

() Under a lease agreement dated 23 December
2003, the Minority Shareholder agreed to lease
to Jiuzhou Port Company ferry terminals at
Jiuzhou Port adjacent to that referred to in (a)
above at an annual rental of RMB650,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$607,000) for
a period of five years starting from 1 January
2004.

Additional related party transactions

During the year, the Ferry Company paid RMB 1,298,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$1,213,000) (2003:
HK$1,402,000) to the Minority Shareholder in respect
of the provision of management services, based on a
certain percentage of the turnover of Ferry Company. In
addition, Ferry Company paid RMB974,000 (equivalent
to approximately HK$910,000) (2003: HK$1,051,000) to
the Minority Shareholder for the leases of certain office
premises and port facilities.

—FTNFMA=A

40.

BEXZRBAEALIRS (&)

KaE: (&)
(iif) (&)

(d) BER=_ZZT=F—A/\B37]
YHERZE  LERRRE
Hﬂ))ﬂ‘*%%fﬁ%ﬁn/}ﬂ%

B EE=F—HF—Hi
7,%%@ F EBFHESAARYK
#9755,0007T (& R B E 4
706,0007T) ° HEH B EHE
EMERAEE - Tﬁ%z%/\la%ﬁ%iﬁ
755,000 * B T HF —

A—BRAEHME ;

(e) BER-ZZT=F—ANB7]
YHEWRRE  LERREE
5 LM S B B _E S (a) AT 7 B
BB THEMBOZREHEE
FAMBERE B=ZZTT=F
—A—BREHAFT B5FM
% & ANR#960,0007T (HEE R
75 49897,0007T ¢ &

f) BER-ZTE=F+_-_A_-+
=Bz ERZ @ LEK
B [E B 5 LM B B AR ST (a) B
MISEBEFTAMBLRR - B
—TTENE—F—HEAHA
&F FHEAARE
650,0007T (8 & R B & 49
607,0007T)

HthBAEALR S

FR - ?ﬂf/‘ﬂawﬁﬁi*ﬂiﬁﬁﬁﬁzﬁ
WAREEBZETED LA DERE
EZH)\E%LZ%,OOOE(*EEEB\\,MM\J
1,213,00070) (Z 22 =% : &K
1,402,0007T) ° BEoh @ Beg ARl B2 5HE
EETHAZREORMER D EARE S
F AR ®974,0007T (B E KB KL
910,000 ) (Z &2 = =% : B
1,051,0007T) °

BN REAER2LT Zhu Kuan Development Company Limited m



Notes to Financial Statements

B 75 R 2R Bt 5

30 April 2004

40.

41.

42.

43.

m Zhu Kuan Development Company Limited kA% R HR A A

CONNECTED AND RELATED
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

PARTY

Additional related party transactions (Continued)

As at 30 April 2004, the Group had a balance due from
the Minority Shareholder. The balance is unsecured,
interest-free and has no fixed term of repayment. The
Minority Shareholder has agreed with the Group that
the amount receivable from the Minority Shareholder of
HK$5,988,000 (2003: HK$6,216,000) will be settled by
the Minority Shareholder’s entitlement to future dividends
from the Ferry Company (note 26).

POST BALANCE SHEET EVENT

Subsequent to the balance sheet date, in August 2004,
the Company acquired a total of 180,094,000 shares,
representing approximately 5.98% equity interest in
Dynamic Global Holdings Limited (“Dynamic Global”), a
company listed on the Stock Exchange, for consideration
of approximately HK$7,500,000 in aggregate. The
trading in the shares of Dynamic Global was subsequently
suspended on 19 August 2004 at the request of Dynamic
Global pending further announcement to be made by
Dynamic Global.

COMPARATIVE AMOUNTS

As further explained in note 2 to the financial statements,
due to the adoption of revised SSAP 12 during the
current year, the accounting treatment and presentation
of certain items and balances in the financial statements
have been revised to comply with the new requirements.
Accordingly, certain prior year adjustments have been
made and certain comparative amounts have been
restated to conform with the current year’s presentation.

APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved and authorised
for issue by the board of directors on 26 August 2004.
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